Public Document Pack

Cheshire E@,

Council%

Cabinet Member for
Housing and Planning

Agenda

Date: Monday 19th June 2017
Time: 9.30 am
Venue: Committee Suite 1 & 2, Westfields, Middlewich Road,

Sandbach CW11 1HZ

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and
press. Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the
reasons indicated on the agenda and at the foot of each report.

It should be noted that Part 1 items of Cheshire East Council decision making and

Overview and Scrutiny meetings are audio recorded and the recordings will be
uploaded to the Council’s website.

PART 1 — MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT

1. Apologies for Absence
To receive any apologies for absence
2. Declarations of Interest

To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable
pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests in any item on the agenda.

For requests for further information

Contact: Cherry Foreman

Tel: 01270 686463

E-Mail: cherry.foreman@cheshireeast.gov.uk with any apologies



Public Speaking Time/Open Session

In accordance with Procedure Rules Nos.11 and 35 a period of 10 minutes is
allocated for members of the public to address the meeting on any matter
relevant to the work of the body in question. Individual members of the public
may speak for up to 5 minutes but the Chairman or person presiding will
decide how the period of time allocated for public speaking will be apportioned
where there are a number of speakers. Members of the public are not required
to give notice to use this facility. However, as a matter of courtesy, a period of
24 hours’ notice is encouraged.

Members of the public wishing to ask a question at the meeting should provide
at least three clear working days’ notice in writing and should include the
question with that notice. This will enable an informed answer to be given.

Royal London Development Framework (Pages 3 - 56)

To consider a report seeking approval of the Royal London Development
Framework for publication and consultation



Page 3 Agenda Item 4

Cheshire East Council

Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning

Date of Meeting: 19 June 2017

Report of: Director of Planning and Sustainable Development
Subject/Title: Royal London Development Framework

Portfolio Holder: Clir Ainsley Arnold, Housing and Planning

1. Report Summary

1.1. This report requests that the Portfolio Holder for Housing and Planning
approves the Royal London Development Framework for publication and
consultation. This follows the allocation of the Royal London site within the
Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy.

1.2. The Development Framework has been prepared in collaboration with
Royal London and is designed to guide future planning applications for
development within the wider allocated area.

2. Recommendation

2.1. That the Portfolio Holder for Housing and Planning approves the Royal
London Development Framework for publication and consultation.

3. Other Options Considered
3.1. That the Council does not publish a master plan for the area.

4. Reasons for Recommendation

4.1. The Royal London Campus at Wilmslow is a significant existing
employment site, encompassing a variety of buildings in a wooded setting.
In 2016, planning consent was granted for a modern replacement for Royal
London House, the principal office facility for the company.

4.2. In December 2016 the Local Plan Inspector confirmed his agreement in
principle with the proposed allocation of a wider area east of the current
buildings for mixed use development. Alongside the allocation of land east
of Alderley Road for housing, the whole area will be removed from the
green belt once the Local Plan Strategy is adopted this summer.

4.3. The forthcoming adoption of the Local Plan Strategy therefore provides the
opportunity to establish further guidance for the site.



Page 4

5. Background and Summary

Context

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

Royal London are a major employer in the north of Cheshire East, having
relocated to their current Wilmslow site from historic buildings in central
Manchester in the 1980’s. The company currently employs over 1200 staff
at their Wilmslow base.

To facilitate future expansion and further employment development in the
area, the land between Alderley Road, the Railway Line and A34 dual
carriageway was allocated for mixed use development in the Submitted
Local Plan of May 2014. A further allocation of land west of Alderley Road
was added in the Proposed Changes Plan of March 2016.

In 2015 the company announced that it would undertake a wider site
search for a new state of the art office facility. The current Royal London
House, though relatively modern, pre-dates the digital era and is hard to
adapt for contemporary office use.

In response, planning permission was granted for a new office facility on
land to the east of the existing main buildings. At the time the area was still
within the green belt.

The Proposed Master Plan

5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

With the forthcoming allocation of the wider site and its removal of the
green belt it is now timely to provide more detailed guidance as to how the
area will be developed in future. This will provide a framework to shape
planning applications for a variety of uses and activities within the Royal
London Ownership. This will not only facilitate future developments, but will
also protect the valued characteristics of the site, which include a number
of historic, landscape and aboricultural assets.

The Development Framework envisages development of the Royal London
site in accordance with policy set out in the Local Plan Strategy and a core
component will be the office accommodation consented in 2016. The vision
of the Development Framework is to create a ‘living campus’ that delivers a
mix of uses as part of a dynamic business-led environment. It encapsulates
a quality of place and provides a thriving environment for business, with a
distinct identity offering an integrated approach to living, working and
relaxing. It will be well-connected and accessible to residents, workers and
the local community.

A set of five key themes has been developed to inform the Development
Framework:

e A thriving location to live, work and relax;

e A highly accessible and connected campus;



Page 5

Creating a quality of place built on landscape and heritage
strengths;

Providing an offer that meets need; and

Adopting a collaborative approach.

5.8. The Development Framework and lllustrative Masterplan will enable the
delivery of:

Next Steps

5.9.

New high quality office space that will support the growth of the
knowledge economy, provide accommodation of a type and quality
that will attract and retain major investment to Wilmslow, and
support the vision to create a dynamic and modern business
location.

High quality housing and other forms of residential development that
will underpin the live/work aspirations of a living campus and provide
the type and quality of homes to meet the needs of Wilmslow and
the Borough.

A wide range of amenities including a hotel and restaurant to
support future occupiers of the living campus and provide attractive
facilities for the local community.

Plentiful green infrastructure and biodiversity links within an
established high quality, landscape setting.

Long term effective use of Listed Buildings including Fulshaw Hall
and the Coach House.

Access to high quality open spaces and new recreation provision.

A high level of connectivity and accessibility, including improved bus
services and enhanced pedestrian/cycle links to Wilmslow Town
Centre, Wilmslow Station and the wider area.

Following consideration by the Portfolio Holder it is proposed to consult on
the Development Framework for a period of six weeks. During this time
comments will be invited on the form and content of the Plan. These
representations will then inform the final version of the document.

6. Wards Affected and Local Ward Members

7.

6.1.

All Wilmslow wards

Implications of Recommendation

7.1.

Policy Implications

7.1.1. The Master Plan is intended to guide future planning applications and
will be a material consideration in their determination.

7.2.

Legal Implications



Page 6

7.2.1. The adoption of the Local Plan will provide a clear statutory framework
for this site which the master plan will then expand in more detail.

7.3. Financial Implications

7.3.1. The cost of preparing and publishing the Development Framework for
2015/16 is covered by the existing revenue budget for Planning &
Sustainable Development.

7.4. Equality Implications

7.4.1. The Development Framework will be subject to full and unfettred
consultation.

7.5. Rural Community Implications

7.5.1. The Impact of the Development Framework will primarily be within the
town of Wilmslow and its immediate environs.

7.6. Human Resources Implications

7.6.1. There are no additional implications for Human Resources arising from
this report.

7.7. Public Health Implications

7.7.1. The Development Framework includes proposals to enhance formal
and informal leisure facilities. This will have a positive benefit in terms of
mental and physical well being.

7.8. Implications for Children and Young People

7.8.1. The Development Framework intends to create a safe and pleasant
environment for all ages. A new child care facility is envisaged on the
site.

. Risk Management

8.1. The Development Framework reduces uncertainty connected with the
development of this area and provides a secure framework within which the
company can grow.

. Access to Information/Bibliography

9.1. The following document is attached as Appendix 1 — Royal London Draft
Development Framework.



Page 7

10.Contact Information

Contact details for this report are as follows:

Name: Adrian Fisher
Designation: Head of Planning Strategy
Tel. No.: 01270 685893

Email: localplan@cheshireeast.gov.uk



mailto:localplan@cheshireeast.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT | Private & Confidential ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
'A Living Campus and Vibrant Mixed Use Quarter for Wilmslow'

May 2017




Page 10



R T
Py

Cheshire East)).
Council?

) ROYAL
LONDON

How AR

ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK

CONTENTS
JECUTI\/E SUMMARY e 4
L AINTRODUCTION L . 8
2. THE VISION AND KEY THEMES ... i, 12
3. STRATEGIC CONTEXT oottt 16
4. THE ROYAL LONDON SITE .o 17
5. PLANNING POLICY it 20
6. DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES . ..o 24
7. THE ILLUSTRATIVE MASTERPLAN e, 32
8. DELIVERY AND PHASING ..iiiiiiieiececececcec 40
9. SUMMARY AND NEXT STEPS ... 41

APPENDIX A - CELPS PROPOSED CHANGES VERSION: JULY 2016

APPENDIX B - PLANNING DOCUMENTATION

‘HJ CBD @Tyier Grange

LAMDOACAFE ARCHITICTURL

L | ebed



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Royal London campus is a premier employment location in Wilmslow and is home to the Royal London Group (“RLG”), the UKs largest mutual
pension provider. It is Wilmslow’s largest single employment location, accommodating more than 1,200 workers. The allocation of the Royal
London campus and its surrounding land for a mix of uses in the Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy (“CELPS”) provides an opportunity to create a
new vibrant mixed use quarter for Wilmslow that will retain and attract the highest quality businesses and talent.

This Development Framework reflects the policies of the CELPS and provides an illustrative masterplan for the entire site (“Royal London site”),
which will underpin an overarching vision to create a ‘living campus’ in Wilmslow and ultimately build upon the existing strengths of the campus to
create an outstanding quality of place and thriving business location where people can live, work and relax.

THE ROYAL LONDON DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK

The Royal London Development Framework provides an illustrative
masterplan and set of Key Development Principles that will guide future
development at the Royal London site. The land that is subject to this
Development Framework is illustrated below and comprises two parcels
that are both covered by strategic Policy CS26 ‘(Royal London including
land west of Alderley Road) of the CELPS. These areas comprise:

1. Land to the East of Alderley Road - this element of the site extends
to approximately 22.6 hectares and lies between Alderley Road to the
west and the West Coast Mainline to the east. The western part of this
site is occupied by the current Royal London campus and its associated
buildings, car parking and infrastructure. Land to the east of the existing
campus, located adjacent to the West Coast Mainline, comprises open
land bounded by hedgerows and contains some sporadic individual

trees. In August 2016 outline planning permission (Application Reference:

16/2314M) was granted for a high quality Bl office development on
5.73ha of land in the south eastern zone of this part of the site.

2. Land to the West of Alderley Road - this land is bounded to the south
and west by the established housing area of Fulshaw Park South, to the
east by Alderley Road and to the north by low density private housing
that is characteristic of the southern residential areas of Wilmslow.

The site comprises some 3.7 hectares of open land, which is broadly
rectangular in shape and has a gently sloping topography falling from
north to south.

PAGE 04

The Development Framework has full regard to local and national planning
policy and has been prepared in accordance with Policy CS26. In summary,
this Development Framework presents:

1. The purpose of the document and the drivers for change;

2. A vision to create a living campus at the Royal London site, underpinned
by five key themes which have shaped the development of an illustrative
masterplan;

3. A description of the Royal London site and its surroundings;

4. A summary of the strategic context and planning policy framework;

Royal London Site (Source: Google Earth)

5. A set of Key Development Principles that will guide the Council’s
consideration of future planning applications for the site; and

6. An illustrative masterplan that accommodates the appropriate uses and
demonstrates one possible broad spatial arrangement for the site.

The Development Framework has been prepared collaboratively between
Cheshire East Council (“CEC”) and a professional team appointed by Royal
London Asset Management (“RLAM™). This document will be subject to
formal public consultation and, if endorsed by CEC, will become a material
consideration for future planning decisions and an important planning tool
to guide developers, investors and occupiers.

2| ebed



The Drivers for Change

The entire Royal London site that is subject to this Development Framework
is owned by The Royal London Mutual Insurance Society Limited and
managed by RLAM. The primary occupier of the site is Royal London
Group ("RLG”), alongside a number of small and medium sized (“SME”)
businesses. RLG currently occupies the Royal London campus and, as the
single largest employer in Wilmslow, accounts for over 1 in 10 jobs in the
town .2 RLG has become a key driver of both the Wilmslow and Cheshire
East economies and, in 2016, had more than 1,200 staff and contributed
approximately £110m in Gross Value Added (“GVA”) to the local economy. 2

The Royal London campus has been a major success and the site is now an
integral part of the community in Wilmslow. The ongoing success of RLG
has led to a commmercial decision to vacate their existing premises at the
site. This is in part driven by a need to accommodate a growing workforce
and partly due to the inadequacies of the main office building within the
current campus, known as Royal London House. However, RLG has not yet
made a decision on where it will locate its new northern headquarters and
the development of a vision to deliver a high quality and thriving business
led “living campus” environment is intended to provide a deliverable and
attractive option for RLG to remain in Wilmslow. RLAM is committed to
delivering a dynamic business environment at the Royal London site that
will deliver an outstanding quality of place that is fully aligned with CEC’s
strategic initiatives and will create an offer that will generate significant
benefits for future Wilmslow, future business occupiers and the local
community. As such, this document and the illustrative masterplan sets out
to provide a positive framework to support wider business and employment
opportunities in the town. A summary of the key drivers for change is as
follows:

1. A change in the planning context. There has been a fundamental change
in the planning context for the site. The emerging CELPS, planned for
adoption in Summer 2017, is now given significant weight as a material
consideration and promotes the removal of the current RLG campus,
together with land to the east and land to the west of Alderley Road,
from the Green Belt. It allocates the overall site for mix of uses including
offices, residential, recreational and other commercial uses under Policy
CS26. In addition, the Council granted planning permission for office
development on a 5.73 ha parcel of land to the east of the current
campus in August 2016 (Application Number: 16/2314M). The draft
Development Framework and illustrative masterplan is underpinned by
this changing planning context for the site and supports an integrated
approach to its future development.

2. Delivering the needs of the market. It is important that the opportunities
presented by redevelopment of the Royal London campus and further
land within the Local Plan allocation are commercially deliverable. This
means the masterplan must enable the delivery of the type and quality
of accommodation which is attractive to the market and that will deliver

employment opportunities and an attractive range of housing however

- it is also critical that the site is better connected to facilities, offers a
range of amenities and is served by improved transport provision, both in
terms of public transport and its accessibility by a range of modes. All of
this will create an environment which will help to retain and attract quality
businesses and, crucially, their skilled staff in the town.

. The quality of existing assets RLG's intended move from Royal London

House and Alderley House has led to the opportunity to review the
condition, efficiency and adequacy of existing campus buildings against
the needs of potential future occupiers and their suitability for alternative
uses. As a result of this exercise, it is clear that current premises -
particularly Royal London House, Alderley House and Harefield House

- are inefficient, unsuitable to meet the needs of modern occupiers and
are not easily or viably adaptable for alternative uses. Ultimately, the
retention of these buildings does not support the quality of place that
would make the Royal London campus a truly dynamic, modern and
attractive business location.

. RLG Expansion. Since its move to Wilmslow, RLG has grown significantly

and now has more than 1,200 full and part time staff employed at the
site. RLG now requires the scale and quality of office space, as well as the
connectivity and amenities, that could accommodate at least 1,500 staff,
with the potential for further expansion. As a result of this continued
growth in headcount and the obsolescence of existing accommodation,
RLG has undertaken its own appraisal of what a modern, growing
business needs from its business location and premises to continue

to thrive. This has led to a commercial decision by RLG to vacate its
existing office premises, focused primarily on Royal London House and
Alderley House. This has presented RLG with two options, either remain
in Wilmslow and build a new office, in line with the proposed CELPS
allocation, or to move away from the town. In this regard, RLG retained
agents in 2016 and launched a formal search for a new office. It expects
to make a decision in 2017 about where to expand. The response from
the manager RLAM, to the choice which RLG needs to make, has been
threefold:

. To continue to promote its ownership through the CELPS process for

B1 and a mix of uses, in respect of which adoption of the CELPS this
Summer will be important to RLG;

. To obtain outline planning consent for a new, modern office up to 17,000

sg. m., which meets the occupier requirements of either RLG or another
knowledge-based occupier, thereby keeping open the option of RLG
remaining in Wilmslow; and

. To prepare and present for approval to CEC a wider Development

Framework, which is anchored on providing a thriving mixed use
environment of the type favoured by most knowledge-based businesses,
looking to attract, retain and motivate high quality staff.

ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1 The Economic Consequences of the Expansion of Royal London Group in Wilmslow:

¢ ebed

the mix, type and quality of uses that will allow Wilmslow’s economy to These drivers for change have underpinned the development of the Briefing Note, Regeneris Consulting, May 2016, p2, pp1.10

thrive. Meeting need and expectation is not only about providing quality illustrative masterplan and informed the quality, type and mix of uses 2 Th.e I?conomic Consequ.ences of t'he Expansion of Royal London Group in Wilmslow:
. Briefing Note, Regeneris Consulting, May 2016, pl1
proposed for the site.

PAGE 05



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

THE VISION AND KEY THEMES

The ‘Living Campus’ Vision

At the heart of the vision for the Royal London site is the aspiration to create
a ‘Living Campus’ that delivers a mix of uses as part of a dynamic business
led environment. Crucially, the living campus encapsulates a quality of
place and provides a thriving environment for business, which is not only a
destination where people go to work, but one with a distinct identity that
offers an integrated approach to living, working and relaxing. The living
campus will embrace the exceptional landscape strengths of the Royal
London site, and offer a unique business environment that is distinctive

and different to more conventional employment locations. It will be well
connected by a range of transport modes, sustainable and easily accessible
to residents, workers and the local community. Ultimately, the living campus
will be a location that is able to attract and retain high quality businesses
and jobs, drawing on the knowledge economy and providing the type

and quality of accommodation that will support the sustainable growth of
Wilmslow and Cheshire East.

R IINT D WO CORAETE
WL PR AT PO

Comi VR
W o L

PAGE 06

Key Themes

To articulate the vision and ensure the living campus and quality of place is
translated into a deliverable illustrative masterplan and, ultimately into the
future development of the site, a set of five key themes has been developed
to inform the Development Framework. These are:

1. A thriving location to live, work & relax - creating a pleasant and inviting
business led environment where people can live, work and relax is crucial
to the living campus. The living campus should create a distinctive
and thriving business location supported by a range of residential,
commercial, community, recreational and leisure uses that provide a
quality of place that encourages activity throughout the day, accessible

not only to the future occupiers of the site, but also the wider community.

2. A highly accessible and connected campus -central to the living
campus concept is the need to create a quality of place by enhancing
the connectivity and accessibility of the site and to building on its close
proximity and relationship with Wilmslow Town Centre. The living
campus should be accessible via a variety of modes of transport and
encourage residents, workers and visitors to utilise sustainable modes
where possible.

3. Creating a quality of place built on landscape and heritage strengths -
a core strength of the current Royal London site and a key differentiator
compared to many other employment locations is its mature landscape
and heritage setting. Central to the vision is the aspiration to create a
‘Quality of Place’ through the retention and enhancement of the special
setting of the site and by making the landscape assets an integral part of
the living campus offer.

4. Providing an offer that meets need - to be deliverable, the site must
ensure it promotes the types and quality of uses that meet expectations.
This includes meeting the expectations and requirements of the market;
of future occupiers and residents of the development and of the local
community.

5. Adopting a collaborative approach - a vision and illustrative masterplan
has been developed which aligns with the new Local Plan policy
framework and also integrates the existing outline planning consent for
new office development on the site.

The five overarching themes that underpin the living campus are intended
to work in harmony to guide the development a thriving business
environment that will deliver an exceptional quality of place. The quality of
place that these key themes and their underlying objectives will create in
Wilmslow should be one that CEC, RLAM, future business occupiers and
residents and the local community can be truly proud of.

THE ILLUSTRATIVE MASTERPLAN

For Wilmslow to thrive, it needs a well-balanced, sustainable local economy.
For this to be viable, the town needs to attract growing, knowledge-based
businesses and skilled high quality staff that will support its economic
growth. The Royal London site, as a premier business destination in
Wilmslow, must create the conditions that attract and retain the very best
B1 office occupiers and knowledge based businesses. The living campus’
principal objective is to create a dynamic business led environment that is
supported by a diverse mix of uses and supporting amenities. Creating the
mix and diversity of uses that appeals to modern B1 office users will create
the conditions that will allow new business to thrive.

An illustrative masterplan has been prepared to support the living
campus vision and to demonstrate how the Royal London site can
develop a dynamic business location and an outstanding quality of

place. The illustrative masterplan articulates the key opportunities, design
considerations and appropriate mix of land uses within the Royal London
site. The illustrative masterplan provides a broad spatial arrangement
which responds to the site constraints and shows one possible form of
development for the Royal London campus.

| ebed

The overall concept of the illustrative masterplan is to create a new focal
point for the living campus within the mixed use “heart” of the site. At
the centre of the mixed use heart is a redeveloped Royal London House,
which links the site to the new consented office development to the east,
the redevelopment opportunity at Alderley House to the south and the
mixed use heritage opportunity around Fulshaw Hall and Coach House

to the north. The illustrative masterplan has been developed as a series

of development plots around the mixed use heart which are connected
via new pedestrian and cycle linkages, thereby reinforcing the existing
landscape infrastructure of the site. These linkages are further enhanced by
new connections to the Wilmslow Town Centre, Wilmslow Railway Station
and destinations such as Alderley Edge to the south of the site.



RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

lllustrative

Masterplan - Principal Use Zones

RESIDENTIAL

MIXED USE HEART:
B1 OFFICE, RESIDENTIAL, COMPLEMENTARY USES

MIXED USE HERITAGE
OFFICE
GREEN SPACE
BN PLAYING FIELDS
EEEEEEEN  ENHANCED GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE
[ mmm HOTEL
- PRIMARY ROUTE
b SECONDARY ROUTE
_ BUS ONLY ROUTE

"

BUS STOP

Illustrative Masterplan Response

The illustrative masterplan shows one possible form of development for

the site that is deliverable, viable and achievable. The range of land uses
proposed within the illustrative masterplan for the Royal London site is
intended to deliver the type of development that sustains the living campus
principally as a thriving business environment, with a mix of complementary
uses and amenities where people can work, both formally and informally,

as well as relax and live. For this to be delivered it must be commercially
attractive and subseqguent planning applications need to be underpinned by
careful consideration of the site’s opportunities and constraints

The core component of the illustrative masterplan as a dynamic new
business environment will be the office accommodation consented in
2016, which provided outline planning permission for up to 177,000m? of
floorspace on the land to the east of the existing campus. Delivery of

this office will form the initial phase of up to 24,000m? of B1 floorspace
proposed in the CELPS under Policy CS26. The illustrative masterplan
provides for a later phase of office development to be delivered outside the
area for which outline planning consent has been granted. This envisages
up to 7000m? of additional B1 floorspace, which would be in line with the
overall CELPS allocation. There also would be further opportunities for
provision of new B1 office floorspace, subject to demand and a sustainable
development programme.

A major scheme such as is shown on the illustrative masterplan will
inevitably be delivered over a number of years in line with market forces.
The successful and sustainable development of the site will be complex and
need to consider the site’s sensitive heritage and landscape assets, the scale
of proposed B1 office development and the mix of complementary uses
that is required. As a consequence of this complexity, it may be necessary
in the early delivery phases to accommodate short term, temporary uses
on land which is identified for other, longer term uses. Phasing proposals
will need to take this into account when considering practical development
issues such as appropriate access and routing for construction traffic
(initially for the 2016 consented office development) as well as potentially
the provision of temporary car parking, to ensure adeguate on site spaces
are retained for occupiers if existing areas of car parking are lost due to new
development taking place.

SUMMARY

This Development Framework provides a platform to deliver the vision

for a ‘living campus’ that is a dynamic business led environment. This
vision envisages a vibrant, high quality mixed use development in an
exceptional landscape setting, where people can live, work and relax. It
will integrate the requirements of modern office occupiers with a distinctive
place offering quality housing, leisure and recreation opportunities and
commercial facilities all in a well-managed environment with plentiful green
spaces, where people can live and spend their leisure time. This will be
achieved by providing excellent access to a range of amenities both within

ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

the site and in nearby Wilmslow town centre, to which the site will be better
connected with enhanced transport linkages.

To support the vision, the Royal London site will need to provide the
type, scale and range of uses that will support the development of a
living campus. In summary, this Development Framework and illustrative
masterplan will enable the delivery of:

1. New high quality office space that will support the growth of the
knowledge economy, provide accommodation of a type and quality that TJ
will attract and retain major investment to Wilmslow, and support the _QJ
vision to create a dynamic and modern business location. Q

(0]

2. High quality housing and other forms of residential development that —
will underpin the live/work aspirations of a living campus and provide 0
the type and quality of homes to meet the needs of Wilmslow and the
Borough.

3. A wide range of amenities including a hotel and restaurant to support
future occupiers of the living campus and provide attractive facilities for
the local community.

4. Plentiful green infrastructure and biodiversity links within an established
high quality, landscape setting.

5. Long term effective use of Listed Buildings including Fulshaw Hall and the
Coach House.

6. Access to high quality open spaces and new recreation provision.

7. A high level of connectivity and accessibility, including improved bus
services and enhanced pedestrian/cycle links to Wilmslow Town Centre,
Wilmslow Station and the wider area.

NEXT STEPS

The Royal London Development Framework will be considered by the
Council’'s Portfolio Holder for Housing and Planning, where a decision will
be made on whether to approve the document for public consultation. If
endorsed for consultation, a period of public consultation will run for six
weeks.

The purpose of this consultation is to seek the views of the local community
and other key stakeholders on the guidance contained in the Development
Framework. Once all comments have been received, these will be fully
considered by the Council and any necessary revisions will be made to the
Development Framework. A revised document will then be put before

the Council’'s Cabinet for final approval and endorsement. If endorsed, the
document would then become a material consideration in the determination
of any future planning applications made at the Royal London site.

Both RLAM and CEC are committed to working in full collaboration with key
stakeholders and the local community as the Development Framework is
progressed, and as future detailed proposals for the Royal London site are
brought forward.

PAGE 07



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
1. INTRODUCTION

This Development Framework presents an illustrative masterplan and overarching vision for the future development of the Royal London site in
Wilmslow. It responds to the policies of the Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy (“CELPS”) and underpins the vision to create a ‘living campus’ in
Wilmslow, which will develop the site into a thriving business location and integrated mixed use campus where people can live, work and relax. This
section sets out the purpose of the Development Framework, the reasons why an integrated masterplan is required to create an outstanding quality
of place and the next steps in the Development Framework process.

PURPOSE OF THE ROYAL LONDON DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK

This Development Framework provides an illustrative masterplan and set
of Development Principles that will guide future development at the Royal
London site. It relates to two parcels of land respectively, to the east and
the west of Alderley Road, that fall within strategic Policy ‘CS26 (Royal
London including land west of Alderley Road) of the CELPS. A plan of
the Royal London site, as referred to in this Development Framework, is
illustrated on the facing page.

This document has full regard to local and national planning policy and
has been prepared in accordance with Policy CS26. In summary, this
Development Framework presents:

1. The purpose of the document and the drivers for change;

2. A vision to create a living campus at the Royal London site, underpinned
by five key themes which have shaped the development of an illustrative
masterplan;

3. A description of the Royal London site and its surroundings;
4. A summary of the strategic context and planning policy framework;

5. A set of Key Development Principles that will guide the Council’s
consideration of future planning applications for the site; and

6. An illustrative masterplan that accommodates the appropriate uses and
presents one possible broad spatial arrangement for the site.

The Development Framework has been prepared collaboratively between
Cheshire East Council (“CEC”) and a professional team appointed by Royal
London Asset Management (“RLAM”). This document will be subject to
formal public consultation and, if endorsed by CEC, will become a material
consideration for future planning decisions and an important planning tool
to guide developers, investors and occupiers.

PAGE 08

9| ebed



1. INTRODUCTION

X
x
o
=
w
=
<
4 4
18
=
Zz
Ll
=
o
o)
|
w
>
1]
(a]
L2
2
o
=
<
O
Zz
o
[a]
Zz
o)
-
<
>
(o)
(4 4

Royal London Site (Source: Google Earth)

PAGE 09




ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
1. INTRODUCTION

WHY A HOLISTIC MASTERPLAN IS REQUIRED:
THE DRIVERS FOR CHANGE

The entire Royal London site that is subject to this Development Framework
is owned by the Royal London Mutual Insurance Society Limited and
managed by RLAM. The primary occupier of the site is Royal London
Group ("RLG”), alongside a number of small and medium sized ("SME”)
businesses. RLG currently occupies the campus and, as the single largest
employer in Wilmslow, accounts for over 1 in 10 jobs in the town?® . RLG has
become a key driver of both the Wilmslow and Cheshire East economies
and, in 2016, had more than 1,200 staff and contributed approximately
£110m in Gross Value Added (“GVA”) to the local economy”.

The ongoing success of RLG has led to a commercial decision to vacate
their existing premises at the site. This is in part driven by a need to
accommodate a growing workforce and partly due to the inadequacies

of the main office building within the current campus, known as Royal
London House. The company is committed to providing its staff with

the quality of place that is required to deliver a modern and high quality
business environment. However, RLG has not yet made a decision on
where it will locate its new northern headquarters. The development of a
vision to deliver a high quality “living campus” environment is intended to
provide a deliverable and attractive option for RLG to remain in Wilmslow.
RLAM is committed to delivering a dynamic business environment at the
Royal London site that will deliver an outstanding quality of place that is
fully aligned with CEC’s strategic initiatives and will create an offer that will
generate significant benefits for future Wilmslow, future business occupiers
and the local community. As such, this document and the illustrative
masterplan sets out to provide a positive framework to support wider
business and employment opportunities in the town. A summary of the key
drivers for change is as follows:

1. The Planning Context

There has been a fundamental change in the planning context for the site.
The emerging CELPS, planned for adoption in Summer 2017, is now given
significant weight as a material consideration. It promotes the removal of
the current RLG campus, together with land to the east and land to the
west of Alderley Road, from the Green Belt. It allocates the overall site

for mixed use development including residential, offices, recreational and
other commercial uses under Policy CS26. In addition, the Council granted
planning permission for office development on a 5.73 ha parcel of land

to the east of the current campus in August 2016 (Application Number:
16/2314M).

3 The Economic Consequences of the Expansion of Royal London Group in Wilmslow:
Briefing Note, Regeneris Consulting, May 2016, p2, ppl1.10

4 The Economic Consequences of the Expansion of Royal London Group in Wilmslow:
Briefing Note, Regeneris Consulting, May 2016, pl

PAGE 10

The draft Development Framework and illustrative masterplan is
underpinned by this changing planning context for the site. It supports an
integrated approach to its future development, consistent with the new
policy background and reflecting the latest planning permission on the land.

2. Delivering the Needs of the Market

It is important that the opportunities presented by redevelopment of the
Royal London campus and further land within the Local Plan allocation

are commmercially deliverable. This means the masterplan must enable the
delivery of the type and quality of accormmodation which is attractive to the
market and that will deliver the mix, type and quality of uses that will allow
Wilmslow’s economy to thrive. Meeting need and expectation is not only
about providing quality employment opportunities and an attractive range
of housing however - it is also critical that the site is better connected to
facilities, offers a range of amenities and is served by improved transport
provision, both in terms of public transport and its accessibility by a range
of modes. All of this will create an environment which will help to retain and
attract quality businesses and, crucially, their skilled staff in the town. This
is a key issue in relation to Royal London as Wilmslow’s biggest employer
and by taking a comprehensive approach to the site, one which this
Development Framework seeks positively to address

3. Responding to the Quality of Existing Assets

RLG’s intended move from Royal London House and Alderley House has
led to the opportunity to review the condition, efficiency and adequacy of
existing campus buildings against the needs of potential future occupiers
and their suitability for alternative uses. As a result of this exercise, it is
clear that current premises - particularly Royal London House, Alderley
House and Harefield House - are inefficient, unsuitable to meet the needs
of modern occupiers and are not easily or viably adaptable for alternative
uses. Ultimately, the retention of these buildings does not support the
quality of place that would make the Royal London campus a truly dynamic,
modern and attractive business location. A summary of these buildings is
as follows:

* Royal London House - Royal London House is a bespoke built office
building constructed in 1987. In relation to current occupier requirements
it is inefficient and not easily adaptable with a poor gross to net floor
area ratio. Adapting Royal London House would require very significant
investment to meet the needs of a modern business. Significant
feasibility and viability testing has been undertaken by RLAM that has
considered a range of possible options for Royal London House, including
refurbishment and remodelling. This exercise has concluded that, at
present, options for the reuse of Royal London House are inefficient
and not commercially viable and, as such, redevelopment represents
the most appropriate way forward. In addition, RLG as the occupier

has undertaken its own detailed assessment of the functionality,
suitability and condition of Royal London House and has concluded that
refurbishment whilst remaining in occupation is not a viable option.

« Alderley House - Alderley House is a 2 storey office building that
does not provide the type or quality of office space now sought by
modern businesses and which is required to attract and retain staff.
Alderley House has no architectural merit or interest and represents an
opportunity to replace an ageing and inflexible property with a new
purpose designed building of much higher quality.

» Harefield House - Harefield House has been converted for office use and
is occupied by a small number of SME’s, a gymnasium which is used by
RLG’s staff and as a meeting place for RLG staff community groups. At
present, the building is fragmented, has an inefficient layout and would
be difficult to remodel to provide modern office space or to adapt for
alternative uses.

Having regard to the above, the Development Framework and illustrative
masterplan has considered opportunities for redevelopment of these
buildings to fully maximise the potential of the existing developed
(brownfield) parts of the site in ways which will be attractive to the market
and hence commercially viable and deliverable, as well as consistent with
emerging Policy CS26.

4. RLG Expansion

Since its move to Wilmslow, RLG has grown significantly and now has more
than 1,200 full and part time staff employed at the site. The growth of
Royal London at the site has been a major success and the company is now
an integral part of the community in Wilmslow. However, RLG now requires
the scale and quality of office space, as well as the connectivity and
amenities, that could accommodate at least 1,500 staff, with the potential
for further expansion.

As a result of this continued growth in headcount and the obsolescence
of existing accormmodation, RLG undertaken its own appraisal of what a
modern, growing business needs from its business location and premises to
continue to thrive. This has led to a commercial decision by RLG to vacate
its existing office premises, focused primarily on Royal London House and
Alderley House. This has presented RLG with two options, either remain
in Wilmslow and build a new office, in line with the proposed CELPS
allocation, or to move away from the town. In this regard, RLG retained
agents in 2016 and launched a formal search for a new office. It expects
to make a decision in 2017 about where to expand. The response from
the manager, RLAM, to the choice which RLG needs to make, has been
threefold:

Q| ebed



a). To continue to promote its ownership through the CELPS process for
B1 and a mix of uses, in respect of which adoption of the CELPS this
Summer will be important to RLG;

b). To obtain outline planning consent for a new, modern office up to 17,000
sg. m., which meets the occupier requirements of either RLG or another
knowledge-based occupier, thereby keeping open the option of RLG
remaining in Wilmslow; and

©). To prepare and present for approval to CEC a wider Development
Framework, which is anchored on providing a thriving mixed use

environment of the type favoured by most knowledge-based businesses,

looking to attract, retain and motivate high quality staff.

In summary, the masterplan and vision for the future comprehensive
development of the site will provide the certainty of a high quality,
deliverable and sustainable development to support RLG’s decision making
process, as well as ensuring an attractive location to attract and retain other
knowledge based businesses to the town.

NEXT STEPS AND PROCESS

This Development Framework will be considered by the Council’s Portfolio
Holder for Housing and Planning to authorise the document for public
consultation. Following a period of public consultation during which we
will seek the views of the local community and other key stakeholders,
any appropriate revisions will be made and a revised document will be

put before the Council’s Cabinet for final approval and endorsement.

If endorsed the document will become a material consideration in the
determination of any future planning applications made in respect of this
site.

Royal London House

Harefield House

ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
1. INTRODUCTION

Alderley House

Fulshaw Hall (Right) Coach House (Left)

PAGE 11



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
2. THE VISION AND KEY THEMES

Royal London provides an exceptional opportunity to build on the existing strengths of the site as a dynamic business location. Its strategic
position, mature landscape setting and the scale of the opportunity available provides great scope to develop a high quality of place in a mixed
use campus that can help to retain and attract key knowledge based businesses in Wilmslow. This section sets out an overarching vision for the
site. It articulates the key themes that underpin this vision and which have driven the illustrative masterplan, which is supported by a set of Key

Development Principles to guide future development on the site.

THE ‘LIVING CAMPUS’ VISION

At the heart of the vision for the Royal London site is the aspiration to create
a 'Living Campus’ that delivers a mix of uses as part of a dynamic business
led environment. Crucially, the living campus encapsulates a quality of
place and provides a thriving environment for business, which is not only a
destination where people go to work, but one with a distinct identity that
offers an integrated approach to living, working and relaxing. The living
campus will embrace the exceptional landscape strengths of the Royal
London site, and offer a unique business environment that is distinctive

and different to more conventional employment locations. It will be well
connected by a range of transport modes, sustainable and easily accessible
to residents, workers and the local community. Ultimately, the living campus
will be a location that is able to attract and retain high quality businesses and
Jjobs, drawing on the knowledge economy and providing the type and quality
of accommodation that will support the sustainable growth of Wilmslow and
Cheshire East.

COMPLEWL 0D B0 COWETE
NITH THE PLLNIES PROVIDED N

L0GEE FECERTY
APy SVCALE TO & wOE _:"}':1'
APPSRV m o AT {:f'
" 1] COMTHNG LG
W‘h—h ‘,'_!' r -,r:l-""";? WEREND - RO
""1-% 1] .'!::Iq IJI..|-r‘:'=':pll
i, i’ 2 =

..._.....-} CORPLEMET THE

TACLITES K THE
WP, CURTTET
A "
-~ T\
M .p':f i " *Eh‘-:h
ASILITY TO TR K F 1 L

NTTRCEATD MTD
e LANDG AP e - LW TOGETHE,

FREETLNTY T Ve &

WIS OF B TVERE O
FTE 4D THAE M TE
WICEE, COMTENT

PAGE 12

THE LIVING CAMPUS: KEY THEMES

To articulate the vision and ensure the living campus and quality of place
is translated into a deliverable illustrative masterplan and, ultimately into
the future development of the site, a set of five key themes have been
developed to inform the Development Framework. These are:

1. A Thriving Location to Live, Work & Relax

At the heart of the living campus vision is the ambition to create a pleasant
and inviting business led environment where people can live, work and
relax. The living campus should create a distinctive and modern business
location supported by a mix of residential, commmercial, community,
recreational and leisure uses that provide a quality of place that encourages
activity throughout the day, accessible not only to the future occupiers of
the site, but also the wider community. The key objectives of this theme are:

a) To build on the strengths of the Royal London site as a premier business
location and develop the living campus into a thriving location for
business.

b) To create a strong identity, a quality of place and a brand that
differentiates the living campus from other residential and office
locations.

c) To provide open spaces, amenities and shared uses that build on the
landscape strengths of the site and provide a quality of place where
residents, workers and visitors can exercise and relax.

d) To provide connectivity between uses to ensure that the living campus
works as a holistic development rather than a cluster of isolated
development parcels

e) To provide an open and accessible site that provides a range of
amenities and community uses that can be used by the residents of
Wilmslow.

f) To provide a campus that promotes personal wellbeing by making
lifestyle and fitness integral to the living campus offer, offering a range of
amenities to encourage participation by future users of the site and the
local community

g) To create a comprehensive offer that helps businesses to attract and
retain staff and which appeals to a wide demographic.

2. A Highly Accessible and Connected Campus

Central to the living campus concept is the need to promote a quality

of place by enhancing the connectivity and accessibility of the site and
building on its close proximity and relationship with Wilmslow Town Centre.

0c ebed



ek
r

rraEL

ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
2. THE VISION AND KEY THEMES

.
=
rte—y

|Z obed

The living campus should be accessible via a variety of modes of transport
and encourage residents, workers and visitors to utilise sustainable modes
where possible. The key objectives of this theme are:

a) To enhance bus services, providing improved public bus services which
will directly serve key elements of the living campus.

b) To improve pedestrian links to Wilmslow Rail Station and the Town
Centre, including the excellent range of facilities it offers.

c) To improve cycle connectivity including enhanced links to Wilmslow Rail
Station and Town Centre.

d) To incorporate green infrastructure that promotes a quality of place
and encourages internal connectivity; offering greatly enhanced

pedestrian permeability and accessibility through the ‘living heart’ of the
campus.

e) To ensure that there is safe vehicular access to the site and adequate
car parking to accommodate future occupiers.

PAGE 13



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
2. THE VISION AND KEY THEMES

3. Creating A Quality of Place Built on Landscape and Heritage Strengths
A core strength of the current Royal London site and a key differentiator
compared to many other employment locations is its mature landscape

and heritage setting. Central to the vision is creating a ‘Quality of Place’

by retaining and enhancing the special setting of the site by making the
landscape assets an integral part of the living campus offer. The key
objectives of this theme are:

a) To create a true ‘Quality of Place’ that supports interconnectivity
between the built and natural environment.

b) To protect and preserve important landscape and heritage assets
and their wider setting, to safeguard those parts of the site that are
cherished and valued.

c) To enhance the existing landscape setting and integrate these
strengths into the wider site offer, placing green infrastructure at the
heart of the vision.

PAGE 14

2z obed

d) To better utilise heritage assets, and in particular
the Listed Fulshaw Hall and Coach House ¢, in order
to ensure their long-term beneficial use and help
create an attractive destination for occupiers and
visitors, including the local community.

5 The statutory listing of these buildings is ‘Fulshaw Hall and the Staff Restaurant (30m North of Fulshaw Hall)’ - the Staff Restaurant is better known as the ‘Coach House’ and is referred
to as such in this document. There is another building which is also known as the Coach House, which is not listed, approximately 50m to the north west of these buildings.



A RS TNRE '-.|..'|_|||:'|:='-

4. Providing an Offer that Meets Need

To be deliverable, the site must ensure it promotes the types and quality
of uses that meet expectations. This includes meeting the expectations
and requirements of the market; of future occupiers and residents of the
development and of the local community. The key objectives of this
theme are:

a) To provide high quality, knowledge based employment space that is
flexible, modern and commercially attractive.

b) To provide the type and quality of homes that will meet the needs of
Wilmslow and the Borough.

c) To provide the type, quality and mix of amenities that meet the needs
and aspirations of future occupiers, residents and the local community.

d) To deliver a high quality scheme that meets the needs of the knowledge
economy by creating the conditions that will retain and attract
successful businesses and talent.

e) To create an integrated living campus that promotes a distinctive
sense of place.

f) To provide a variety of uses that complement and support rather than
compete with the wider offer in Wilmslow.

ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
2. THE VISION AND KEY THEMES

5. Adopting a Collaborative Approach

A vision and illustrative masterplan has been developed which aligns with
the new Local Plan policy framework and also integrates the existing
outline planning consent for new office development on the site. The key
objectives of this theme are:

a) To ensure that the masterplan and development of the campus accords
with Policy CS26 of the emerging CELPS.

b) To ensure that any development of the campus is sensitive and
responsive to the needs of local residents.

c) To engage with the wider local community and to feed into the
preparation of the forthcoming Neighbourhood Plan for Wilmslow.

€z abed

d) To ensure the masterplan responds appropriately to the views of other
stakeholders in relation to technical matters.

e) To reflect in the masterplan, the extant outline planning permission to
develop a high quality office building and to support the submission of
a Reserved Matters application that will bring forward this development.

f) To promote a development that is commercially viable and deliverable
in order to ensure that the CELPS allocation of the site (Policy CS26) can
be genuinely realised.

The five overarching themes that underpin the living campus are intended
to work in harmony to guide the development of a thriving business
environment that will deliver an exceptional quality of place. The quality of
place that these key themes and their underlying objectives will create in
Wilmslow should be one that CEC, RLAM, future business occupiers and
residents and the local community can be truly proud of.

RBS, Gogarburn

PAGE 15



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
3. STRATEGIC CONTEXT

The northern part of Cheshire East is an area with significant economic and growth potential. It benefits from strong links to key population centres
and transport hubs, including Manchester City Centre and Manchester Airport. Wilmslow has a population of 23,000° people and acts as a gateway
between Cheshire East and Greater Manchester; providing an opportunity to build on existing strengths in the professional services and knowledge
based industries and delivering the type of employment space, housing and amenities that can support the sustainable growth of Cheshire East.
The Royal London site is a major asset to Wilmslow and its future growth and development as a premier business location will be an important

component in fulfilling the economic potential of the Borough.

REGIONAL AND SUB-REGIONAL CONTEXT

Wilmslow occupies a strategically important location and is a key link
between Greater Manchester and the Constellation Partnership area
(formerly the Northern Gateway Development Zone), which encompasses
Cheshire East and the north of Staffordshire. The vision for the Constellation
Partnership is to deliver significant new homes and jobs across the
Partnership’s area by 2040, building on success that is “underpinned by a
skilled population, a high value multi-university fed knowledge economy, a
adynamic business environment based around a range of growth sectors””.

The Cheshire and Warrington Local Enterprise Partnership (“LEP”) is also
playing a central role as an enabler of new opportunities and a driver of the
growth of the sub regional economy. The LEP’s Strategic and Economic
Plan for Cheshire and Warrington seeks to deliver a significant level of
housing and employment growth, supporting a combined region which is
home to an additional 100,000 residents, 75,000 new jobs and 70,000 new
homes by 20308.

There is a significant wealth of strategic policy at the regional and sub-
regional levels that supports the future growth of Wilmslow and Cheshire
East. This Development Framework complements these key strategic
policy objectives and will help create the conditions that will attract and
retain businesses and their skilled staff in Wilmslow, as well as enabling the
provision of new homes consistent with national policy priorities.

6 Local Plan Strategy Proposed Changes (Proposed Changes Version), July 2016, page 460,
paragraph 15.384

7 A Collaboration for Growth and Prosperity, pl

8 Cheshire and Warrington Matters: A Strategic and Economic Plan for Cheshire and
Warrington, (2014)p6

® Alignment of Economic, Employment and Housing Strategy, June 2015, page 46,
paragraph 5.15

1 The Economic Consequences of the Expansion of Royal London Group in Wilmslow:
Briefing Note, Regeneris Consulting, May 2016, pl1

11 Local Plan Strategy Proposed Changes (Proposed Changes Version), July 2016, page
460, paragraph 15.384

12 Local Plan Strategy Proposed Changes (Proposed Changes Version), July 2016, page
442, paragraph 15.360

PAGE 16

SUPPORTING THE GROWTH OF WILMSLOW

Wilmslow benefits from excellent locational qualities, local amenities and a
highly skilled workforce. The town has developed a reputation as a premier
location for high value sectors, notably the professional and financial
services sector (including RLG); scientific and technical activities and the
technical sector®.

Together, these account for 37% of all employment or 4,000 jobs in Wilmslow,
more than double the national average (15%). RLG is a major driver and
contributor to the sectors, accounting for more than 1 in 10 jobs (providing
more than 1,200 full and part time jobs) in Wilmslow and contributing a GVA
of £110m to the local economy®. As such, Wilmslow is fully embedded in
strategic policy as a key service centre and important employment location
with excellent access to the Greater Manchester economy.

Wilmslow is extremely well placed to meet the potential demand from
companies in sectors that have high growth and investment prospects
and the town has the potential to take advantage of accelerated
economic development. A number of strategic factors drive Wilmslow’s
attractiveness as an office and business location including its transport
links, amenity offer, skilled population, quality housing and proximity

to Manchester, the airport and the motorway network. These strategic
advantages support growth potential, both in terms of inward investment
and expansion of existing local businesses, creating a demand for the types
of employment and residential accommodation that will attract and retain
both business and people

CELPS strategic policy formally identifies Wilmslow as a Key Service Centre
with an expanding knowledge based industry!!. It also recognises that

the Royal London site “presents an opportunity to deliver a high quality,
sustainable, mixed use development to contribute to the identified housing
needs of Wilmslow, as well as contributing to the provision of the Borough'’s
knowledge-based industry and open space provision'?”.

SUMMARY

The Royal London site is very well located in Wilmslow and benefits

from key links to Manchester City Centre, the Airport and the wider
Greater Manchester conurbation. The Royal London site is identified as
an important strategic driver of the local knowledge economy and a key
employer in Wilmslow. It is also planned as the provider of an important
component of the future supply of new homes in the town.

The development of the site therefore provides a significant opportunity
to develop the employment strengths of the site and retain and attract the
types of business and highly skilled workers that will support the strategic
priorities of Wilmslow and Cheshire East.

The following section comprises a short description of the Royal London
site which is subject to this Development Framework.

(=)
N

CHESHIRE '

CONSTELLATION
‘.. '+ PARTNERSHIP

Front Covers of Alignment of Economic Employment and Housing Strategy,
Cheshire and Warrington LEP, Northern Gateway Development Zone / The Constellation
Partnership and Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
4. THE ROYAL LONDON SITE

The Royal London site is located to the south of Wilmslow town centre and is currently home to Wilmslow’s largest employer, RLG. The site sits
within an attractive and mature landscaped setting and provides an exceptional opportunity to create a “living campus” that builds on its existing
strengths and supports the growing knowledge economy in Wilmslow and the northern part of the Borough.

13 The Wilmslow Website - http://www.wilmslow.org.uk/wilmslow/wfulshaw.html

Wider Site Location Plan (Source: Google Earth)

The Royal London site is managed by RLAM, which is a wholly owned asset
management subsidiary of the RLG that was established in 1988. RLG is
the UK’s largest mutual life and pensions company and has been an integral
part of the fabric of British society for more than 150 years. As a mutual
insurer, RLG is owned entirely by its policyholders.

Gg ebed

RLG is currently the primary occupier of site having acquired the Refuge
Assurance Company (which was headquartered at the site) in 2000.
Originally, the site was known as ‘The Fulshaw Estate’ and was the former
home of the Finney Family, who purchased the estate in 1682. During the
Second World War, the site and its premises was requisitioned by the War
Office and used for the training of Special Operations Executive agents.
Prior to RLG’s occupation and the development of the current Royal London
House by the Refuge Assurance Company in 1987, the site was used as
offices by ICI*3,

RLG has become Wilmslow's largest employer and the campus has become
an important contributor to both Wilmslow and the Cheshire East economy.
The campus is also occupied by a number of smaller SME businesses that
capitalise on the site’s location and the presence of RLG in Wilmslow.

THE SITE

The Royal London site lies approximately 1km to the south of Wilmslow
Town Centre and approximately 1.8km to the north of Alderley Edge. It
has excellent access to the strategic highway network lying adjacent to the
A34 Pendleton Way (the Wilmslow bypass) and connected to a local road
network which provides good links to Manchester, Manchester Airport and
the M56 (via the A538).

The site is fairly well served by public transport with bus stops conveniently
located along Alderley Road and routes providing regular services to
Wilmslow, Manchester and Macclesfield. Wilmslow Railway Station is
located within walking distance of the site, situated approximately 1.5km
north, and serves a range of destinations on the West Coast Mainline,
providing access to Manchester in under 30 minutes and London in less
than 2 hours.

The site that is subject to this Development Framework and illustrative
masterplan comprises two parcels of land both of which fall within Strategic
Site Policy CS26 of the CELPS. The extent of the land is shown edged red
on the plan presented on the plan here, which illustrates the site within its
strategic context. It comprises two main areas which are briefly described
on the following pages. PAGE17



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
4. THE ROYAL LONDON SITE

1. Land to the East of Alderley Road

The eastern element of the site extends to approximately 22.6 hectares and
lies between Alderley Road to the west and the West Coast Mainline to

the east. To the north is Wilmslow High School and established residential
areas at Whitehall Close and Harefield Drive. To the south is the Pendleton
Way/A34 Bypass which forms a strong physical boundary between the site
and open countryside further to the south.

The western extent of this area is occupied by the current Royal London
campus including its associated buildings, car parking and infrastructure.
This part of the site sits within a mature and well enclosed landscape setting
and includes a number of mature tree groups covered by Tree Preservation
Orders (“TPOs”) which give the site its sylvan character.

The site has a number of interconnected watercourses, including
Whitehall Brook (classified as a “main river”) which is located on the
southern boundary of site, an unnamed ordinary water course located
at the northern boundary of the land to the east of Alderley Road and
an unnamed culverted water course that runs through the Royal London
campus.

Currently, the site is accessed at two points from Alderley Road which is
lined (on both sides) in this vicinity by mature hedgerows and trees which
form an important part of the local character and which act as a screen
to the site.

The current Royal London campus contains a mix of buildings of varying
ages, styles and quality including:

* Royal London House - a bespoke, irregular shaped 9,750 sg. m. office
building constructed in 1987 and is the main offices currently occupied
by the RLG;

» Alderley House - an ageing two storey office building providing
approximately 2,400 sg. m. of floorspace which is occupied by both RLG
(in part) and a number of SME’s;

* Harefield House - this building is unlisted and provides approximately
230 sg. m. of space situated between Royal London House and Alderley
House, which is utilised by small number of SMEs, as a gymnasium for
RLG’s staff and as a meeting place for RLG staff community groups;

* Fulshaw Hall and the Coach House'* - comprising two Grade Il listed
buildings (which were built in 1684 and 1890 respectively) which provide
small scale office space for SMEs;

* Lodges - three existing lodges front onto Alderley Road, which are
known as Harefield Lodge North, Harefield Lodge South and Fulshaw
Lodge South. These lodges currently provide limited office space for
smaller commercial businesses; and

e Car parking - there are a number of existing areas of surface car parking
serving the office uses, including a two-level decked car park located
between Alderley House and Royal London House and an open surface
level car park to the immediate east of the campus buildings. Existing
parking on the site comprises approximately 870 spaces in total.

Land to the east of the existing campus, located adjacent to the West Coast
Mainline comprises open land bounded by hedgerows and contains some
sporadic individual trees. The topography of this area falls from its highest
point in the south west to the lowest in the north eastern corner. To the
immediate north of this land is Wilmslow High School’s playing fields and
established residential areas forming part of Wilmslow’s urban area.

On 9th August 2016 outline planning permission (Application Reference:
16/2314M) was granted for a new office development on 5.73 ha of land
at the south eastern part of the site. The planning consent approves

up to 17,000 sg. m. of new office space alongside 1,100 car parking
spaces, access improvements, new pedestrian and cycle routes and the
enhancement of existing landscaping. This consent will provide a catalyst
for the future development of the Royal London site.

14 The statutory listing of these buildings is ‘Fulshaw Hall and the Staff Restaurant (30m North of Fulshaw Hall)’ - the Staff Restaurant is better known as the ‘Coach House’ and is referred
to as such in this document. There is another building which is also known as the Coach House, which is not listed, approximately 50m to the north west of these buildings.

PAGE 18

2. Land to the west of Alderley Road

Land to the east of the existing campus, located adjacent to the West Coast
Mainline comprises open land bounded by hedgerows and contains some
sporadic individual trees. The topography of this area falls from its highest
point in the south west to the lowest in the north eastern corner. To the
immediate north of this land is Wilmslow High School’s playing fields and
established residential areas forming part of Wilmslow’s urban area.

There are no public rights of way, watercourses or built form within this
land. Land to the west of Alderley Road is characterised by mature trees
and hedgerows along Alderley Road and some mature trees within the
body of the site, mainly in its southern extent.

oc ebed



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
4. THE ROYAL LONDON SITE

Site Features

Key

Site Boundary

Land Ownership Boundary
-Pedestrian/Cycle link

,C dbed

Employment Use (Use Class B1) including
carparking, landscaping + associated
infrastructure. Building height to a maximum
of +95.000A0D

Area for ecological mitigation

[///7) Area for landscape buffer within

employment use
Access
Please refer to CBO access plans for further detail

. Existing vegetation retained

% Existing vegetation removed

B

o e\ \ B~

t]

E‘
e

Ovs
e

Outline Planning Consent Area

PAGE 19



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
5. PLANNING POLICY

This section provides a summary of the key relevant planning policies that will be considered in the development of the Royal London site. It is not
intended as a comprehensive account of all relevant planning policy and should be read in combination with the detailed requirements set out in the
Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy (“CELPS”) and other relevant planning guidance.

The CELPS is at an advanced stage of preparation. In March 2016, CEC
consulted on the Proposed Changes to the CELPS and an Examination into
these changes by an independent Inspector took place during September
and October 2016. In December 2016 the Inspector issued his latest
interim views to the Council, indicating that he found the Plan generally
sound subject to a limited number of further modifications which he
recommended. The Council has consulted on the Proposed Modifications
and is currently awaiting the final letter from the Inspector; subject to this
the aim is to proceed to formal adoption of the Plan during summer 2017.

Technically, at present, the adopted Development Plan for the site currently
comprises the “saved” polices of the Macclesfield Borough Local Plan.
However, given its advanced stage and imminent adoption the CELPS now
attracts significant weight as a material consideration and will, on adoption,
formally replace a number of policies in Macclesfield Borough Local Plan as
it affects this site. Accordingly, this Development Framework focuses upon
the key policies in the CELPS as they will apply to the site.

In addition to the CELPS there are a number of formal and informal
Supplementary Planning Documents which provide more detail and which
are likely to be material in determining applications on this site. These
include:

* Supplementary Planning Guidance Note ‘Development in Established
Residential Areas: Fulshaw Park’ (2004);

¢ Section 106 (Planning) Agreements Supplementary Planning Guidance
(2004);

e The Cheshire East Borough Design Guide Supplementary Planning
Document (2016); and

e The Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment)
Regulations 2011 (as amended).

The following section identifies the key CELPS policies of relevance to the
Royal London Strategic Site.

—
t \_oca\ plan ¢ Communities

) and Local Government
(1]

Cheshire Eas

\_oca\ P\an Strategez National Planning Policy Framework
proposed Chogs
final Version

July 201 6

2
A Easﬁ/g Www.communities.gov.uk
cheshlfecounal’/// = prosperity

Front Cover of Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework

15 The Macclesfield Borough Local Plan, adopted on 8th January 2014

PAGE 20

Qc obed



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
5. PLANNING POLICY

LAND USE: POLICY CS26 Potential Uses for the Royal London Campus

_ Policy CS26 identifies a range of potential land uses for this site. These land
s uses, together with the Development Principles set out in the policy, have

’ informed the illustrative masterplan which underpins this Development
Framework. Policy CS26 seeks the development the Royal London site
together with other land (in separate ownership) to the north through:

|
N

The CELPS proposal is to remove the entire Royal London site and further
land covered by this Development Framework from the Green Belt and
allocate it for mixed use development. This is set out in Strategic Site Policy
CS26: ‘Royal London and land the west of Alderley Road’. A full copy of
Policy CS26 is reproduced at Appendix A to this Development Framework.

1. The retention of the existing Royal London Campus unless buildings
become surplus to the requirements of existing occupiers, in which case v
the Council will consider their suitability for reuse or redevelopment for a Q

Q

{ISERN ]

Policy CS26 identifies the Royal London site as a key opportunity which will
facilitate the growth and expansion of a major employment site. The site is

described as performing “an essential role” and as “vital in providing future i : range of alternative uses; o)
employment opportunities in Wilmslow". l,:'-.i';"f; 4. s : g 2. The delivery of around 175 dwellings (around 80 on land to the east of N
= fary j thiield|Farmgfes the existing campus, around 20 to the north of the existing campus and ©

i
(e tont ) :_tﬁc--'v I
’ T 0 "_' around 75 on land west of Alderley Road);

3. The provision of 5 ha of employment land for up to around 24,000 square
metres of B1 employment space and a hotel;

o Lo, Tl el ¥ B
==l ' )t i -‘—fﬂ:(-u"i%’.."’;.
=T 4. Incorporation of Green Infrastructure and the provision of public open

| space at the southern end of the land west of Alderley Road;

5. Retention and extension of the existing Wilmslow High School playing
fields for educational use in the area marked as protected open space on
the map. This may include additional buildings for education use provided
they do not harm the integrity of the open space overall;

6. Provision of at least 1 ha of land set aside for use as school playing fields
within the land to the east of the existing campus, in addition to the areas
marked as protected open space on the map, and an appropriate level of
amenity open space and children’s play space; and

Business
Park

7. Pedestrian and cycle links and associated infrastructure.

- _"??J‘-* Creating a mix of integrated uses that support the core employment and
= residential users of the site will be critical to realise the living campus vision.
ﬁ As such, an illustrative masterplan for the site has been developed to
. N ﬁt'—_ consider a range of complementary uses that support this vision, to deliver
A i - L; the objectives of Policy CS26 and to secure the active redevelopment of
i - ‘::ﬁ"::;_ n i existing buildings for a range of alternative uses. These are complementary

to the core objectives of Policy CS26 and include?®:

CELPS Policy CS26 Policy Map CELPS Wilmslow Town Map ) ) ) ) ) ,
« Convenience retail/commercial and food and drink uses (including

restaurant and coffee shop uses) to provide accessible on site amenities
and to support the living campus concept.

» Potential care home or retirement living uses.

* Community uses that support the needs of the living campus, such as a
créche or day nursery, where it is identified that amenities that are required
by the wider community or by future occupiers/residents of the site

* Leisure and active indoor and outdoor uses such as a gymnasium and
outdoor leisure amenity such as jogging trails, fitness tracks, allotments
and formal sports provision.

16 Note that this is not intended to be an exhaustive list and other uses may be considered on their individual merits.

PAGE 21



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
5. PLANNING POLICY

HIGHWAYS AND ACCESS

CELPS Policy SD1 (Sustainable Development in Cheshire East) requires
that development proposals demonstrate they deliver safe vehicular access
and egress arrangements and do not prejudice the movement of traffic

on surrounding roads or have an adverse impact on neighbouring uses. In
order to achieve this, the surrounding highway network needs to be able to
accommodate any traffic growth associated with development of the Royal
London site. Policy SD1 also requires sufficient car parking to be provided
in accordance with adopted highway standards.

Policy CO1 (Sustainable Travel and Transport) requires development to
meet the objectives of policy SD1 and supports new developments that are
(or can be made) well connected and accessible. In particular, Policy CO1
encourages the development of improved pedestrian and cycle facilities
and the enhancement of public transport integration, facilities, capacity and
service levels. Policy CS26 relating specifically to the Royal London site also
seeks to ensure pedestrian and cycle links to the site are provided and that
access to the local area (including Wilmslow Railway Station) is improved.

Policy CO4 (Travel Plans and Transport Assessments) requires all major
development proposals that are likely to generate significant additional
journeys to be accompanied by a Transport Assessment and, where
appropriate, a Travel Plan. Any detailed proposals for the site would also
need to be accompanied by a Parking Strategy that clearly sets out how
future parking needs would be met.

The development of this site must ensure that sustainable modes of
transport; including cycling, pedestrian access and improved public
transport connections are integrated into the development of the living
campus. As planning proposals are developed for the site, detailed
transport and parking assessments will be required to enable an assessment
of the impact of development proposals and identify mitigation measures
where appropriate.

PAGE 22

LANDSCAPE

The landscape setting of the site is a significant asset that must be retained
and where possible enhanced as the site is developed. Policy SE4 (The
Landscape) requires developments to conserve landscape character and
quality and should, where possible, enhance and effectively manage the
historic, natural and man-made landscape features that contribute to local
distinctiveness of both rural and urban landscapes. Development should
incorporate landscaping which reflects the character of the area in order
to promote local distinctiveness, avoid the loss of habitats and protect the
historical and ecological qualities of the area.

Policy SE5 (Trees, Hedgerows and Woodland) seeks to prevent the loss

of, or threat to, trees, hedgerows or woodlands that provide a significant
contribution to the amenity, biodiversity, landscape character or the
historic character of the surrounding area. Where such adverse impacts

are unavoidable, the impact of development proposals must satisfactorily
demonstrate a significant net environmental gain by appropriate mitigation,
compensation or offsetting. The development of detailed proposals for
the site should ensure that the impact on protected and those identified as
valuable trees is assessed as part of a detailed Tree Survey.

Site specific Policy CS26 also seeks to retain and enhance features of
amenity value where feasible, including the mature wooded area to the
west of the site, the brook and ponds that are present on site and the tree
lined frontage to Alderley Road.

The landscape setting of the Royal London site is paramount to its
character as an attractive place to live, work and relax and will be
fundamental to the sense of place that is a core element of the living
campus concept. Development proposals for the site will therefore be
required to respect and integrate this landscape setting into any scheme,
so as to preserve its character and ensure that key landscape and
arboricultural assets are protected, and where possible enhanced, in line
with policy.

NATURAL ENVIRONMENT

In addition to the landscape setting of the Royal London site, there are
elements of the natural environment and existing habitats which should be
preserved as the site develops. Policy SE3 (Biodiversity and Geodiversity)
requires areas of high biodiversity and geodiversity value to be protected
and enhanced. Development proposals for the site must aim to contribute
positively to the conservation and enhancement of biodiversity and
geodiversity, respecting existing habitats present on the site and securing
the ecological enhancement measures agreed as part of the 2016 outline
consent for office development (planning consent Application Reference:
16/2314M).

Policy SE6 (Green Infrastructure) seeks to deliver a good quality and
accessible network of green spaces for people to enjoy, providing for
healthy recreation and biodiversity and a range of social, economic and
health benefits. Policy CS26 specifically requires the incorporation of green
infrastructure and appropriate landscaping at the Royal London site as well
as the provision of open space at the southern extent of land to the west of
Alderley Road.

Policy SE13 (Flood Risk and Water Management) requires development

to manage flood risk and water quality appropriately. Parts of the site are
within areas at risk of flooding and, as such, as the site comes forward for
new development the appropriate policy requirements must be met to
ensure that any flood risk is fully assessed at the outset and then managed
and mitigated where appropriate. In line with Policy CS26, any planning
applications for development on land which is at risk of flooding will be
required to be supported by an appropriate Flood Risk Assessment (“FRA™)
to demonstrate that development proposals will not increase flood risk

on site or elsewhere and opportunities to reduce the risk of flooding are
sought, taking into account the impacts of Climate Change in line with the
Cheshire East Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (“SFRA”). Development

on areas that may be at risk of flooding will be required to include or
contribute to flood mitigation, compensation and / or protection measures,
where necessary, to manage flood risk associated with or caused by the
development in line with Policy SE13 of the CELPS.

Policy SE12 requires that all development is located and designed so as to
conserve and enhance the natural environment. All development should
be located and designed so as not to result in a harmful or cumulative
impact upon air quality, surface water and groundwater, noise, smell,
dust, vibration, soil contamination, light pollution or any other pollution
which would unacceptably affect the natural and built environment, or
detrimentally affect amenity or cause harm.

0€ ebed



The site is adjacent to or within areas of inert landfill associated with the
construction of the A34 bypass and, as such, any limited risk associated
with this would need to be assessed at the planning application stage.
Policy SE12 requires that where development proposals may affect or be
affected by contamination or land instability, developers provide a report
which investigates the extent of the contamination or stability issues and
the possible affect it may have on the development and its future users, as
well as the natural and built environment. Policy CS26 requires sulbmission
of a Phase 1 Preliminary Risk Assessment for contaminated land to
understand any risk associated with on-site landfill. These are both matters
to be addressed at the time of a planning application(s).

Policies SE8 (Renewable and Low Carbon Energy) and SE9 (Energy
Efficient Development) seek to reduce pollution and aid a transition to a
low carbon future. These policies encourage the development of renewable
and low carbon energy schemes and the principles of the Energy Hierarchy
including seeking to achieve a rating under schemes such as BREEAM (for
non-residential developments), CEEQUAL (for public-realm development)
and Building for Life. Opportunities to improve energy efficiency by means
of building type, orientation, detailed design and layout would need to be
considered in any proposals for the Royal London site.

HERITAGE

The Royal London site contains Grade Il Listed Buildings which sit within

a heritage and landscape setting. It is important that the development

of the site respects these Listed Buildings which comprise Fulshaw Hall
and Coach House. Policy SE7 (The Historic Environment) requires the
character, quality and diversity of the historic environment to be conserved
and enhanced. Development at the Royal London site should seek to avoid
harm to heritage assets and make a positive contribution to the character
of Cheshire East’s historic and built environment, including the setting of
assets and where appropriate, the wider historic environment.

As detailed proposals for the site come forward, a Heritage Assessment will
be required as part of any planning application, to ensure heritage assets
and their settings are appropriately considered. It is important that any
development within the vicinity of heritage assets should be designed to
ensure adequate protection of the heritage setting; and that the significance
of heritage features is appropriately protected in accordance with the
requirements of Policy SE7.

DESIGN AND AMENITY

CELPS Policy SE1 (Design) requires development proposals to make a
positive contribution to their surroundings by developing a sense of place,
managing design quality, ensuring sustainable design and liveability/
workability, and designing in safety. Larger scale and more complex
developments are encouraged to undertake a Design Review, for example
through Places Matter'’, and to adapt proposals accordingly.

Policy SD2 (Sustainable Development Principles) requires developments

to contribute positively to an area’s character and identity; including

scale, choice of materials, external design, massing, green infrastructure
and the relationship to neighbouring properties, the street scene and the
wider neighbourhood. Proposals are also required to respect and, where
possible, enhance the landscape character of the area and to respect the
significance of heritage assets and their wider setting. For proposals for
new employment, Policy SD2 expects that they will create an attractive and
successful place to work, with minimum impact on the surrounding area,
and to maximise opportunities for access and deliveries by a range of forms
of sustainable transport.

Policy CS26, relating to the Royal London site requires any development of
the site to deliver high quality design and appropriate landscaping / green
infrastructure, in order to preserve the character of the area and ensure

an acceptable relationship between residential and employment uses. The
policy also requires a design response that respects the site’s location as

a key entrance into Wilmslow and which addresses the setting of Listed
Buildings on the site.

Proposals should also consider the guidance provided in the Cheshire East
Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document (2016), which provide
developers and design teams with a framework of advice to aid design
evolution. Key design principles to consider include working with the grain
of the site, urban design, street design, green infrastructure, landscape
design, sustainable design principles and quality of life. Land proposed for
housing to the west of Alderley Road should seek to reflect the guidance
contained in Fulshaw Park Supplementary Planning Guidance Note (2004).

It is clear that the policy framework and associated guidance requires
development proposals to demonstrate a commitment to a good quality of
design, materials, finishes and detailing and provide good quality hard and
soft landscaping.

ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
5. PLANNING POLICY

RECREATION AND LEISURE

There is an opportunity, through development of the Royal London site,

to improve leisure and recreation facilities for future site occupiers and the
local community. Policy CS26 seeks to ensure that at least 1 hectare of
land is set aside on land to the east of the campus for use as school playing
fields. There may be potential for these playing fields, or other recreational
facilities which are provided, to be used as a leisure amenity to support
business occupiers of the site and the wider community.

Policy SC1 (Leisure and Recreation) supports the provision of better leisure,
community and recreation facilities where there is a need for such facilities.
Policy SC2 (Indoor and Outdoor Sports Facilities) also supports new sports
facilities where they are accessible and appropriate in scale and type.

Recreation and leisure provision at the Royal London site will form an
important component of the living campus and will help to create a mix of
uses where people can truly live, work and relax.

AFFORDABLE HOUSING

Local planning guidance on affordable housing, including Policy SC5
(Affordable Homes) of the CELPS, seeks to secure 30% of any new dwellings
as ‘affordable’, subject to viability. Site specific Policy CS26 also requires
affordable housing at the Royal London site in line with Policy SC5. Policy
SC4 (Residential Mix) of the CELPS also seeks to ensure that new residential
development maintains, provides or contributes to a mix of housing tenures,
types and sizes to help support the creation of mixed, balanced and
inclusive communities; including meeting the needs of older people.

$106 REQUIREMENTS AND COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)

Proposals for any new development will be expected to make appropriate
contributions, via a Section 106 Agreement or by means of the Cheshire
East Community Infrastructure Levy (if applicable). Such contributions will
help offset the impacts of the proposed development on physical, social,
community, and environmental infrastructure. In accordance with the CIL
Regulations contributions will only be sought where they are necessary to
make any development acceptable in planning terms, directly related to the
development, and fairly and reasonably related in both scale and kind.

Any planning application should be supported by suggested draft Heads of
Terms for a S106 Agreement. Further guidance on the contributions likely to
be sought can be found in the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance
on S106 Agreements and through pre application discussions.

17 Places Matter! is a north west architecture and built environment centre offering a constructive, impartial and expert advice via a Design Review Service.

(http://www.placesmatter.co.uk/)

PAGE 23

o
Q
(@]
()
-



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK

6. DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES

This section sets out the key design and development principles that have informed the illustrative masterplan and that should be used to shape the
future development of the site. These key principles have been developed with full regard to the site characteristics, the character of the local area

and the guidance contained in national and local planning policy. They are underpinned by a robust suite of technical assessments that provide a

thorough assessment of the site constraints and opportunities.

KEY PRINCIPLE 1: LAND USES TO SUPPORT A ‘LIVING CAMPUS’

Development of the Royal London site should provide a range of land
uses that support the ‘living campus’ as a thriving location for business
and delivers an integrated, vibrant mixed use development where people
can live, work and enjoy their leisure time both through the daytime and
into the evening. Development should reflect the land uses proposed in
CELPS Policy CS26 and also provide a mix of complementary uses that
will be attractive to the market and deliver the mix, type and quality of
amenities that typify the requirements of a modern office occupier.

For Wilmslow to thrive, it needs a well-balanced, sustainable local economy.

For this to be viable, the town needs to attract growing, knowledge-based
businesses and skilled high quality staff that will support its economic
growth. The Royal London site, as a premier business destination in
Wilmslow, must create the conditions that attract and retain the very best
B1 office occupiers and knowledge based businesses.

The living campus’ principal objective is to create a dynamic business led
environment that is supported by a diverse mix of uses and supporting
amenities. Creating the mix and diversity of uses that appeals to modern B1
office users will create the conditions that will allow new business to thrive.
The mix of land uses proposed for the site has been carefully considered

to create an attractive offer for new business, which will ultimately help to
attract and retain high quality businesses and staff.

Creating an attractive mix of uses to support the Royal London site is
especially relevant given its edge-of-town location. The living campus will
create ‘urban’ elements, enabling it to compete with other locations by
ensuring that it provides a more sustainable mix of uses, without losing the
distinctive landscaped setting that the site enjoys.

The range of land uses proposed will support a high quality, sustainable,
mixed use development that supports the Royal London Campus as a
premier business location. These land uses include!®:

» B1 office floorspace;

* Residential development, comprising a mix of density and types of new

homes including potentially care home/retirement living accommodation ;

* Hotel,
* Restaurant(s);
* Convenience retail to support the living campus concept;

» Ancillary uses such as food and beverage outlets and a coffee shop/
meeting hub;

« Community facilities such as a gym and nursery/créche;

« Open space sports/fitness facilities such as jogging trails, outdoor gym
equipment, allotments/community gardening areas as well as land set
aside for new playing fields;

» Qutdoor event space;
e Car parking to meet the needs of residents, workers and visitors; and

« Areas of public realm/greenspace where people can meet informally
and relax.

18 Please note that this is not intended to be an exhaustive list and other uses may be considered on their individual merits.

PAGE 24

Z< abed



Key

mm | Existing Green Infrastructure
mgw Consented Green Infrastructure

D- Open Fields / Green Space

[:‘; Business Use
I- I' Heritage
EH i Residential

Landscape Character Plan

ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
6. DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES

KEY PRINCIPLE 2: RETENTION OF HIGH QUALITY LANDSCAPE SETTING

Development of the site should protect and where possible enhance

the

key landscape assets and the landscape setting within which the existing
Royal London campus and the wider site sits. These assets include the
existing green corridor along Alderley Road, mature woodland to the

south and west (of land to the east of Alderley Road); the landscape

setting of Listed Buildings (Fulshaw Hall and the Coach House) and high
quality trees (including those subject to Tree Preservation Orders) that
have been identified as part of a detailed tree survey. New development
should sympathetically integrate with the existing landscape character of
the site and support the long term maintenance and management of key

landscape features.

The landscape value of the site and surrounding areas has been assess

ed

by DEP Landscape Architecture Ltd (“DEP”). The site does not lie within a
protected landscape area and there are no landscape designations within
or in the immediate vicinity of the site. The existing vegetation and trees
at the field boundaries and edges of the site make a positive contribution
towards the setting and visual amenity of the site and should be integrated

into any future development proposals. If appropriate, future planning

applications would be accompanied by a Landscape and Visual Impact
Assessment (“LVIA”) to ensure that the key landscape characteristics of the

site are assessed and appropriately retained/ enhanced.

An analysis of existing landscape features has identified key landscape

character areas within the site. This includes the heritage character area
to the north of the site (incorporating Fulshaw Hall and the Coach House)
and the existing business character within the Royal London campus. The
masterplan and future planning applications in relation to the site should
consider the setting and character of development parcels across the site
when considering the type, scale and mix of uses; and the impact these

uses may have on landscape character.

An Arboriculture Survey has been undertaken by arboricultural consultants
Tyler Grange. There are a number of TPOs present on the site which have
been assessed by CEC and Tyler Grange. This has confirmed the presence
of these TPOs, under a Tree Preservation Order that was put in place on
the 23rd January 1975. Due to the age of this TPO, many trees have already
been removed and any trees planted since 1975 are not protected. There

are also other multiple trees and clusters of trees across the site. These

range in quality from trees of high quality and value (Category A), trees
of medium quality and value (Category B), trees of low quality and value
(Category C) and trees that are recommended for removal (Category U).

Future planning applications for the site should be accompanied by an
Arboricultural Impact Assessment, where required, to understand to
impact of any development proposals on existing trees and to identify
any required mitigation.

PAGE 25

_
Q
Q

W
w



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK

6. DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES

KEY PRINCIPLE 3: ENHANCED GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE
AND OPEN SPACE

Development of the site should incorporate a network of new and
existing green infrastructure that will reflect the important landscape
characteristics of the site and link together proposed land uses. New
green infrastructure should support a network of open spaces that
provide connectivity and support permeability within the living campus.
This should include high quality landscaping, new public realm and
informal meeting spaces between existing and proposed employment
uses and an area of new public open space as part of the development of
land to the west of Alderley Road.

The development of the site should build upon the existing internal and
external connections and incorporate green areas between uses to

embed the principles of green infrastructure into any future development
proposals. High quality existing trees, should be retained wherever possible
and positively managed to support the existing important landscape
character that they provide. This includes trees along the Alderley Road
boundary (west and east sides) as well as areas of woodland to the

south of the existing campus site. Landscaping and planting should be
encouraged to further contribute to improving landscape character, such as
a strengthened green frontage to the west of Alderley Road.

Future proposals for the site should consider the opportunity to create a
network of green infrastructure that supports the development and use

of outdoor fitness and leisure uses, such as fitness trails, jogging circuits
and outdoor gym equipment/fitness hubs. Proposals should also support
internal permeability across the site and green infrastructure connectivity
between the site’s primary uses and the wider area. Proposals should
consider the use of green infrastructure, shared spaces and the public realm
in the context of the living campus concept; seeking to promote a coherent
landscape and movement strategy across the site. Any planning application
for the site should address the future maintenance of landscape features
and public areas.

PAGE 26

F Excivting Grees infraarocnre
‘- Bl ped Woodlands

|- Landiape BuferiSireen Planting
[- Exologpioal Erdant sment Anexl
Fu...,; Enhianted Drgen lifrajbruccung

Faat
¥ i Landheape Drfoncemees A

L

Green Infrastructure Opportunities

¢ abed



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
6. DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES

KEY PRINCIPLE 4: HIGHWAYS, VEHICLE ACCESS AND CAR PARKING

Development of the site must ensure that safe and suitable vehicular
access can be achieved and that there is no residual “severe adverse
impact” on the surrounding highways network®. An appropriate level of
car parking should be provided in accordance with the outline planning
consent and the Council’s Car Parking Standards.

Traffic analysis has been undertaken by CBO Transport to inform the
illustrative masterplan and to understand the potential impacts of the uses
proposed on surrounding public highways. Currently vehicular access to the
Royal London campus is provided via two accesses from Alderley Road.
The primary access is via an all movements signal controlled junction to
the south of Royal London House. The second access is a priority junction
located to the south of the primary access. This second access provides
an entrance to car parking to the south of Alderley House, but is an “exit
only” option for other Royal London campus buildings. The extant planning
permission for office development on land to the east of the campus
includes a requirement for works to improve the signal controlled access
through the widening of the Royal London Campus approach, as well as
other measures to improve traffic flows on Alderley Road.

Any further development of the site (beyond the consented office scheme)
utilising these access points may need to deliver additional highway
mitigation works (on and off site) in order to provide appropriate access
solutions. Future planning applications will need to be accompanied by

a detailed Transport Assessment and appropriate mitigation measures
identified and secured.

An opportunity exists to create a new all movements access on land to

the north of Fulshaw Hall (@s indicated opposite and on the indicative
masterplan). This has good potential to provide a third access to the
campus site as well as scope to deliver penetration by public transport
services through the development, by providing a direct route re-joining
Alderley Road via one of the existing southern access points. A new access
to the north may also provide an appropriate (temporary) entry point

for site construction traffic enabling the existing Alderley Road campus
accesses to operate unimpeded during the build period.

Land to the west of Alderley Road which is allocated for residential
development should be served by a new priority junction along the
Alderley Road frontage; an approximate position is shown on the

EXISTING ACCESS POINT illustrative masterplan.

The site should also provide an appropriate level of car parking to meet
E)élggéh;(ggfﬁTIESTRlAN future need. Uses that come forward in the future as part of the masterplan
should provide parking in accordance with the Council’s current Car

NEW ACCESS POINT Parking Standards.

1% This is the test set out at paragraph 32 of the National Planning Policy Framework in
relation to highway impacts of development.

Existing Access Plan

PAGE 27

G¢ abed



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK

6. DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES

KEY PRINCIPLE 5: CONNECTIVITY AND SUSTAINABILITY

Development of the site should include a comprehensive movement
strategy that ensures accessibility by a range of sustainable modes of
transport including public bus, walking and cycling. Any scheme should
include improved pedestrian and cycle links to Wilmslow Town Centre
and railway station and support the aspirations and sustainable travel
initiatives which seek to connect CEC’s North East Corridor.

The area surrounding the site has good accessibility for pedestrians, with
high quality footways provided on both sides of Alderley Road and a
controlled crossing on Alderley Road. To the south, there are controlled
pedestrian crossings provided at the roundabout on the A34 Pendleton
Way and A34 Melrose Way to link to Alderley Edge, whilst to the north the
footways continue into Wilmslow town centre. Harefield Drive has good
quality footways and links to Holly Road South, providing direct links from
the site to the town centre and railway station.

Advisory cycle lanes are provided along Alderley Road in both directions
between the Royal London campus signal junction and the Alderley Road
/ B5086 Knutsford Road / Bedells Lane roundabout. There is also a short
section of advisory cycle lane on the northbound side of Alderley Road
between the Alderley Road / A34 Pendleton Way / A34 Melrose Way
roundabout. In addition, a new combined cycleway / footway would be
provided on the east side of Alderley Road between the A34 roundabout
and the southern Royal London access as part of the measures required
under the consented office scheme (Application Number: 16/2314M).

Future development proposals should ensure that existing pedestrian/cycle
links are enhanced both within the site and to the wider area to maximise
the advantages of the sites proximity to the wide range of facilities within
Wilmslow town centre and the railway station.

The opportunity that exists to create a new all movements access on land to
the north of Fulshaw Hall provides the scope to deliver a bus route through
the campus by providing a direct route, re-joining Alderley Road via one

of the existing southern access points. An on-site bus stop or stops would
improve accessibility and directly serve the office and residential elements
of the development, providing a more efficient way of serving the site by
bus than the existing Alderley Road corridor (which has an existing bus
service, the No. 130, which runs between Manchester and Macclesfield).
There is an opportunity for the Royal London site to capitalise on proposals
which seek to connect key locations in Cheshire’s North East, that could
provide shuttle bus services that connect destinations across Cheshire’s
North East “Science Corridor”, which covers the area between Knutsford
and Macclesfield and extends northwards including the A34 corridor

to Wilmslow / Handforth, as well as the A538 corridor to the Airport
Future planning applications at the Royal London site should, through the
appropriate mechanisms, fully investigate the potential implementation of
this bus route and bus service diversions.

PAGE 28

KEY PRINCIPLE 6: PROTECTING AND ENHANCING ECOLOGY
AND BIODIVERSITY ASSETS

Key ecological features on the site should be protected, managed and
where possible enhanced as part of any development proposals. Detailed
ecological surveys have been undertaken and habitat features, such as
woodland, should be sensitively integrated with built development and
the future green infrastructure across the living campus.

A Phase 1 Habitat Survey including protected species surveys has been
undertaken by ecological consultants Tyler Grange to assess the existing
ecological status of the site, which has found no significant ecological
issues that would preclude the future development of the site. The existing
habitats comprise improved and semi-improved grasslands, arable,
broadleaved and mixed plantation woodland, hedgerows, scrub, marshy
grassland, amenity grassland, hedgerows, ponds and ditches.

Surveys were conducted for Great Crested Newts ("GCN"), badgers, bats,
birds and reptiles. No GCN were identified. Bat species including common
pipistrelle, soprano pipistrelle and few myotid species were found to be

using hedgerows and boundary features for coommuting and foraging. The
site also has trees that are mature and large enough to support bat roosts.

Two bird species of amber conservation status (dunnock and kestrel) were
recorded within the site and one species of red conservation (bullfinch) was
heard to be singing on the site. There was no evidence of reptiles on the
site.

Any development proposals should seek to retain important tree groups,
where possible, and provide green infrastructure throughout the site.
Ecological mitigation identified as part of the existing outline consent for
offices on land to the east of the campus, as well as new areas of habitat
comprising ponds and woodland planting, should be provided to enhance
the ecological value of the site and mitigate potential losses. Where
required, future planning applications should be accompanied by further
Habitat Surveys to assess the potential for species and to identify any
mitigation required as a result of development proposals.

1"‘-.
b
L}
. S
[
a5y QO .
2
'G @,
b= - Ay s

L WEEE SR
1]
[ B
S Fulshaw™
; Hall &
, FE
71m i all e T
3 ‘_' "
A l’ 4 .
n

Land to the East of Alderley Road - Ecological Appraisal

KEY

D Site Boundary

== White Hall Brook
k=] pitch

" Pond / Lake

== Species Poor Hedge

-- Tree Lined Hedge

Broadleaved Scattered Trees
(Area 1)

# #] Broadleaved Scattered Trees
==l (Area 2)

"!:' Scattered Scrub
=]
:.r': Continuous Scrub

'o.,ﬁ"' | Marshy Grassland

Semi-natural Broad leaved
.. Woodland

[ | Mixed Plantation Woodland
i | Improved Grassland
44 car Park
L]
'] | Poor Semi-Improved Grassland
2| Tall Ruderals
—. Fence
-
A | Amentiy Grassland

. Bridge Under Railway
=l

E Arable

g€ ebed



Fulshaw Hall (top) and the Coach House (Bottom)

ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK

6. DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES

KEY PRINCIPLE 7: PRESERVING HERITAGE ASSETS

The two Listed Buildings (Fulshaw Hall and the Coach House?°) and their
respective settings should be preserved and where possible enhanced
as part of the development of the site. Proposals for new uses for these
buildings which secures their ongoing maintenance and ensures a viable
long term use will be supported.

A heritage and archaeological appraisal has been carried out by Orion
Heritage. This assessed the archaeological potential of the site and the
potential for any development impact on heritage assets.

The site has low potential for archaeological remains from prehistoric

and Roman times. The majority of the site also has low potential for
archaeological remains for medieval and post medieval dates apart from
an area at the south western edge of the site close to the A34 roundabout
that has moderate/high potential for medieval and post medieval remains
associated with a non-designated Medieval moated site. There has been
no evidence encountered within the appraisal that suggested remains of
national importance are likely to be present at the site.

There are no Scheduled Monuments, Registered Battlefields, Registered
Parks or Gardens located within the site or within 1 km of the boundaries.
There is one Conservation Area, the ElIm Grove (Alderley Edge)
Conservation Area, within 750m of the southernmost boundary of the
Royal London site. Fulshaw Hall and the Coach House are Grade Il Listed
Buildings. There are also two locally listed buildings in close proximity to
the western boundary of the site, namely “Rostherne” and “Chorlton House”
that lie within the Fulshaw Park housing area.

Where required, a planning application which could impact upon the setting
of listed buildings or heritage assets would be accompanied by a detailed
Heritage Assessment to understand the significance of any impact and the
appropriate mitigation measures which might be required. The results of
this should inform development proposals with the aim of avoiding harm to
the significance of heritage assets unless that harm is appropriately justified
in accordance with Paragraph’s 133 and 134 of the NPPF.

KEY PRINCIPLE 8: DESIGN AND CHARACTER

High quality design and place making should deliver a ‘Quality of Place’
that retains and enhances the landscape setting and sylvan character
of the site and ensures that the relationship between residential and
employment uses is sensitively considered. The high quality design of
the development should also respect the site’s location as a gateway to
Wilmslow.

The campus site has been developed over many years within a mature
landscape setting, which has created distinctive character areas. Any
new development requires a sensitive design response in terms of scale,
density, mix and visual appearance in order to sensitively integrate new
development within its wider site context.

In addition to the consented office development on land to the east of the
campus there are parts of the current campus site that lend themselves to
redevelopment in the form of high quality contemporary and innovative
buildings. In areas proposed for residential uses, such as land to the north
of the campus and to the west of Alderley Road, a mix of dwelling types
and densities should be considered that encourage an inclusive and mixed
community and reflect the character of the surrounding area.

Any development proposals should respect the landscape setting and
heritage character of the site in line with the Key Development Principles.
New development should build upon and integrate seamlessly with these
existing assets, which should form an intrinsic part of the living campus.
The Listed buildings at Fulshaw Hall as described in Key Principle 7 should
be integral to any future development of the site.

Green infrastructure will be incorporated into the proposals and key existing
features such as boundary hedgerows and important trees should be
retained, reflecting the site’s location at a key gateway into the town. These
features should provide screening and allow relationships between differing
land uses to be respected.

20 The statutory listing of these buildings is ‘Fulshaw Hall and the Staff Restaurant (30m North of Fulshaw Hall)’ - the Staff Restaurant is better known as the ‘Coach House’ and is referred
to as such in this document. There is another building which is also known as the Coach House, which is not listed, approximately 50m to the north west of these buildings.

PAGE 29

/€ abed



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK

6. DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES

KEY PRINCIPLE 9: VISUAL AMENITY

Built development on the site should ensure that it does not adversely
impact on key views, viewpoints and visual receptors such as surrounding
residential areas, key routes and longer distance views to Alderley Edge.

An assessment of the key views into and out of the site has been
undertaken by consultants DEP. The site is well screened within its mature
landscape setting, with limited views available from public vantage points.
There are limited views into the site from existing residential properties, the
local highway network and the local Public Rights of Way network. Existing
trees around the site boundaries which filter views should be retained,
strengthened where possible and managed to provide screening. Further
planting of trees should be considered to provide additional screening and
to mitigate any adverse effects on visual receptors.

Existing trees around the site boundaries which filter views should be
retained, strengthened where possible and managed to provide screening.
Further planting of trees should be considered to provide additional
screening and to mitigate any adverse effects on visual receptors.

Where it is required, future planning applications for the site should be
accompanied by a Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment to ensure that
key views and visual receptors are assessed.

KEY PRINCIPLE 10: SPORTS FACILITIES AND RECREATION

Any development should ensure that 1ha of land is set aside for the
development of new playing fields or alternative recreation provision on
land to the east of the existing Royal London campus. The site should
also provide an appropriate level of children’s play space to support new
residential development.

The indicative masterplan shows a potential area of the site that could
accommodate playing fields or other recreational uses associated with
Wilmslow High School as required by Policy CS26. New playing fields
or recreational uses should be sensitively integrated into the overall
development to respect any surrounding and new uses. The siting and
location of these recreational uses should remain flexible and should be
agreed in collaboration with key stakeholders; including CEC, RLAM and
Wilmslow High School.

Joint usage of the new playing fields / recreation provision between the
Wilmslow High School, wider community and future occupiers of the
Royal London site should be explored as part of any planning application
proposals.

PAGE 30

Key

-‘ k‘g e IniedCn of Lis
b { Screwning & Filuwing of Views by

Wepc i ko
'r'.'"l: Encicred Charicdpr
Bl Eey Wiewesaints

Landscape Analysis Plan

i it st ;



KEY PRINCIPLE 11: OTHER ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS

The development of the site should ensure that any additional
environmental considerations are considered, assessed and where
necessary mitigation is implemented prior to any development of the
site. This includes flood risk and drainage, noise, air quality and
ground conditions.

Flood Risk and Drainage
There are a number of water courses within and adjacent to the site.
These comprise:

« Whitehall Brook (classified as a main river) which is located to the south
of the site.

* the unnamed ordinary water course located along on the northern
boundary of the land to the east of Alderley Road - this is referred to as
“Fulshaw Estate watercourse” by RLG.

¢ an unnamed culverted water course that runs through the Royal
London campus from the Fulshaw Estate watercourse and outflows
to Whitehall Brook.

The Environment Agency flood mapping data identifies that part of the site
is located within Flood Zone 2 and 3 associated with Whitehall Brook whilst
remainder is within Flood Zone 1 (Low Probability). Maps provided by EA
indicates that parts of the site are at risk of flooding from surface water
runoff associated with Whitehall Brook and Fulshaw Estate watercourse.
The site location is within the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment for Cheshire
East. Maps within the SFRA indicate that the existing site is mostly within
Flood Zone 1 but does have areas of Flood Zone 2 & 3 (Low, Medium &
High Probability) associated with Whitehall Brook.

A Flood Risk and drainage exercise has been undertaken by consultants
Shepherd Gilmour to assess the existing flood risk status and current
drainage regime at the site and inform the masterplan proposals.

Shepherd Gilmour’s work has assessed historical flooding in the area,

and any potential flood risk to the masterplan development areas from

all sources of flood risk including fluvial, pluvial, groundwater, sewers and
artificial sources such as canals and reservoirs. The work has been informed
by detailed hydrological modelling of Whitehall Brook.

There are areas of flooding within the site associated with Whitehall

Brook and Fulshaw Estate watercourse. In addition, the Fulshaw Estate
watercourse currently passes through a culvert and outfalls at the
ornamental water attenuation feature adjacent to the existing Royal London
House. The watercourse then continues through a culvert and outfalls at
Whitehall Brook. There is historical evidence that Royal London House
canteen has flooded at times of flood event/when the culvert has become
blocked.

ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK

6. DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES

The illustrative masterplan proposals have been developed taking into
account the flooding information. Further detailed flood modelling

and detailed Flood Risk Assessment will be undertaken at the planning
application stage once detailed proposals are available to ensure flooding
off-site is not increased due to the development proposals. A number of
engineering and design options would also be delivered such as raising floor
levels and re-profiling levels across the site and the use of Sustainable Urban
Drainage techniques (where appropriate).

Local flood risk constraints have been identifiedand appropriate mitigation
should be incorporated to protect neighbouring properties and the
development proposals, significantly improving and managing the flood risk
status of the site.

(5= ¢
Tl

Le

e Ahuishaw B ;
farsRark -
L

Al 155 =
: SF i hawy JH Al
|}

Environment Agency Flood Map for Planning

Noise

A noise impact assessment has been carried out by WSP Parsons
Brinckerhoff. Noise measurements were taken at multiple locations within
the site. The assessment entailed the setting up of recording apparatus
at locations around the site for 24 hour periods to continually record
noise levels. The recorded noise levels were then used to create a model
to generate daytime and night-time noise contours across the site and
surrounding area.

The site noise environment is dominated by trains passing on the West
Coast Mainline that borders the eastern area of the site, road traffic from
Alderley Road and road traffic from the Wilmslow Bypass.

The results of the sound modelling identified that the site is acceptable

for development. In areas where any source of noise may occur, such as
residential development within close proximity to the West Coast Mainline
on the eastern boundary, mitigation may be required. Mitigation measures
such as appropriate window glazing and acoustic fence would be designed
into proposals for residential uses on areas of the site close to noise sources.

Geology and Ground Conditions

A Phase | Geo-Environmental Site Assessment has been undertaken by E3P.
The BGS geological maps indicate that the site is underlain by Wilmslow
Sandstone Formation bedrock with a varying drift geology between areas
of Alluvium and other areas of Glacial Till.

There are two landfills present within the site’s boundary, these are the
Whitehall Farm and Alderley Road landfills to the eastern section of the site.
These landfills accepted inert waste only. There are further two landfills in
the immediate vicinity of the site, this is Wilmslow County High School site
to the north and Brick Hill Farm Landfill Site to the east.

There is not considered to be any significant sources of contamination
present on site. In the areas of landfill in the east, records indicate that the
deposited material comprised inert wastes likely derived from excavations
associated with the A34 construction. Due to site characteristics and

the high likelihood that the landfills comprise of only inert materials,
ground gases (including radon) are not envisaged to pose any risk to the
development site.

It is not considered that the ground conditions on site will have any
significant impact on the proposed growth aspirations for the site. However,
as parts of the site are developed, further ground investigations would

be required to fully understand any potential constraints in relation to
contamination and ground conditions.

Air Quality

A review of DEFRA’s Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAS) interactive
map show that the site is not located within or close to the vicinity of

an AQMA. It is not considered that there are any air quality constraints
preventing the development of the site.

PAGE 31

6€ obed



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
7. THE ILLUSTRATIVE MASTERPLAN

This section seeks to articulate the key opportunities and design considerations that have informed the development of an illustrative masterplan.
Within this section we present the design rationale and response to the key design and development principles identified in Section 6. The response
to the key design and development principles is underpinned by a robust suite of technical assessments that have identified the site constraints

and opportunities.

KEY OPPORTUNITIES

The existing Royal London site presents an opportunity to create a new,
modern, vibrant 4iving campus’ within a mature, high quality landscape
setting including buildings of historical interest; all of which will combine to
create a genuinely interesting and dynamic business led environment where
people will be able to live, work and relax. This quality of place will create

a thriving business location with a distinct identity within the Borough;
making it attractive and accessible to occupiers, residents and the local
community.

Following a robust appraisal of the adaptability of Royal London House,
Alderley House and Harefield House to accommodate a variety of uses, it
has been concluded that they are inefficient and unviable for alternative
uses and present potential redevelopment opportunities within the context
of the living campus vision for the site.

A plan which illustrates the principal use zones for the site is illustrated
across.

KEY DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS

The two primary design considerations that the illustrative masterplan has
considered are:

1. The creation of a unigue sense of place at the Royal London site; and

2. The integration of the mix of potential uses and development plots into
a coherent site strategy, building upon the key strengths and character
areas of the site.

The overall concept of the illustrative masterplan is to create a new focal
point of the living campus within the mixed use “heart” of the site. At the
centre of the mixed use heart is a redeveloped Royal London House, which
links the site to the new consented office development to the east, the
redevelopment opportunity at Alderley House to the south and the mixed
use heritage area around Fulshaw Hall and the Coach House to the north.
The illustrative masterplan has been developed as a series of development
plots around the mixed use heart which are connected via new pedestrian
and cycle linkages, thereby reinforcing the existing landscape infrastructure
of the site. These linkages are further enhanced by new connections to the
Wilmslow Town Centre, Wilmslow Railway Station and destinations such as
Alderley Edge to the south of the site.

PAGE 32

M
I
)
RESIDENTIAL
E_:‘-' RESIDENTIAL
(SR ;
189~ /
el |
s
¥
;_.i_ﬂ":r .
g ¢
Sl )
N

- . 4 __.11‘ %
_:',.-1;'."; ?'E

et {? i
l -‘H,IL A

o T
Sh“_: *}

Illustrative Masterplan - Principal Use Zones

O ebed



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
7. THE ILLUSTRATIVE MASTERPLAN

ILLUSTRATIVE MASTERPLAN RESPONSE

The design considerations have been reviewed against the Key

| f Development Principles through the development of an illustrative

| f masterplan. The following section provides a potential design response to

4 f the Key Development Principles and presents an illustrative masterplan that
_— e : shows one possible form of development for the Royal London site. The

/ | f illustrative masterplan demonstrates a possible broad spatial distribution of
l,-"l uses, and has been developed to demonstrate that an appropriate mix of

,-"I uses can be achieved and to promote the concept of a ‘living campus’.

Land Uses to Support a ‘Living Campus’
/ The range of land uses proposed within the illustrative masterplan for the
Royal London site is intended to deliver the type of development that
sustains the living campus principally as a thriving business environment,
with a mix of complementary uses and amenities where people can
work, both formally and informally, as well as relax and live. The potential
i distribution of land uses is as follows:

L ebed

High Quality B1 Office Floorspace

The core component of the illustrative masterplan as a dynamic new
business environment will be the office accommodation consented in 2016.
This provided outline planning permission for up to 17,000m? of floorspace
on the land to the east of the existing campus. Delivery of this office will
form the initial phase of the 24,000m? of B1 floorspace proposed in the

CELPS under Policy CS26. The illustrative masterplan provides for a later
/ phase of office development to be delivered outside the area for which
ERTDENERL outline planning consent has been granted. This envisages up to 7,000m?
! of additional B1 floorspace, which would be in line with the overall CELPS
— MIXED USE HEART: allocation. There would be further opportunities for provision of new
B1 OFFICE, RESIDENTIAL, COMPLEMENTARY B1 office floorspace, subject to demand and a sustainable development
USES programme. The illustrative masterplan shows BL1 floorspace in the location
" MIXED USE HERITAGE of Alderley House. If there is demand for B1 use across this range of _
- assets, then in broad terms there would be an approximate 75% increase in
. ofFFICE the provision of B1 office accommodation in comparison with the current
provision. The proposed mixed use designation of not only the current
GREEN SPACE . Royal London House but also the heritage buildings is intended to be able
BN  pLAYING FIELDS : to r_espond flexibly to market demand, which would include provision B1
business use.
I ENHANCED GREEN INFRAS'L@UCTURE
[T HOTEL il

-nw ’ PRIMARY ROUTE
= == SECONDARY ROUTE

BUS ONLY ROUTE

L-;|I

BUS STOP

Illustrative Masterplan Response

PAGE 33



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
7. THE ILLUSTRATIVE MASTERPLAN

Residential Development

There are a number of potential residential development plots identified
within the illustrative masterplan, which provide the opportunity to deliver
the type and quality of homes that will best meet the needs of Wilmslow
and the Borough. These plots include:

* Land to the west of Alderley Road;

* Land the north of the consented B1 office development and to the north
east of the existing Royal London campus; and

* The existing Royal London House, the current site of which has the
potential for development for residential and/or retirement living/care
uses in combination with complementary commercial and/or office uses.

The development of new homes as part of the campus would seek to
ensure that a mix of market and affordable housing is brought forward in
line with CELPS affordable housing policy (Policy SC5), as set out in Section
5 of this Development Framework

Hotel

As the illustrative masterplan has developed it has become apparent that
there exists the opportunity to introduce a new hotel element to the living
campus, in line with the aspirations of Policy CS26 of the CELPS. A possible
location for a new hotel use is on the site of existing decked car park, which
has excellent accessibility to Alderley Road and the strategic road network,
and could deliver a new high quality hotel offer to Wilmslow and the
Borough.

Complementary Uses

The redevelopment of Royal London House offers the opportunity to
introduce ancillary commercial uses such as a small scale convenience retail,
restaurant uses and complementary food and drink/coffee uses that would
add vibrancy and vitality to the living campus. There is an opportunity

to deliver these complementary uses at the heart of the mixed use and
mixed use heritage areas of the living campus, which could benefit future
occupiers and residents of the site, as well as the local community.

Ancillary community facilities such as a gym or créche could also be
explored to support the living campus, with opportunities to explore these
uses at Fulshaw Hall or a redeveloped Harefield House.

Recreational Uses

Within the illustrative masterplan, the connection of public open spaces has
been a key design driver in linking the core elements of the living campus;
through the creation of new pedestrian and cycle connections linking each
of the principal open spaces identified within the masterplan. In addition,
the illustrative masterplan shows the possible location of 1 hectare of land
for playing fields or other recreational uses to the north of the site, for use
by Wilmslow High School and the future occupiers of the site. The siting of
these uses may be subject to change and would be agreed in collaboration
with key stakeholders; including CEC, RLAM and Wilmslow High School.

PAGE 34

The illustrative masterplan also seeks to integrate the potential for leisure
and amenity uses that support the living campus, including active indoor
and outdoor uses such as a gymnasium and outdoor leisure amenity such
as jogging trails, fitness tracks, allotments and events space

High Quality Landscape Setting

The illustrative masterplan has been prepared following the detailed
landscape assessment of the existing site which considered the key views
and visual receptors around the site. Following this assessment, the key
landscape character areas were identified as the heritage area, business use
areas and open fields to the north and east of the site, and to the west of
Alderley Road

Following the completion of the landscape assessment, a number of

key landscape strategies have been implemented in the design of the
illustrative masterplan, which seek to retain and where possible enhance the
high quality landscape setting of the site. These strategies include:

* Retention and reinforcement of the existing green corridor along
Alderley Road.

» Creation of a landscape buffer to existing residential properties to the
west and north of the site.

» Creation of a new area of public open space on the southern extent of the
land to the west of Alderley Road.

» Creation of a series of landscape enhancement areas within the heart of
the living campus.

* Preservation of the landscape and heritage setting of Fulshaw Hall and
Coach House at the heart of the scheme.

* Protection of the landscape frontage onto Alderley Road, adjacent to
Alderley House.

* Retention of managed woodlands to the east of Alderley Road on the
approach to the A34 roundabout.

* Retention of the existing landscape infrastructure across the site including
TPO and high quality trees, where possible.

Enhanced Green Infrastructure, Amenity and Open Space

The illustrative masterplan has been developed to enhance the existing
green infrastructure across the site as identified in the series of landscape
strategies above. The green infrastructure proposals have been informed by
the detailed landscape, arboriculture and ecology surveys.

There are a number of new open spaces which are connected and provide
permeability across the living campus through the creation of new
pedestrian and cycle routes. These routes offer the opportunity to link into
wider connections to the north of the site, including to the Town Centre and
the Railway Station and the south of the site to Alderley Edge and beyond.

The illustrative masterplan has considered a number of uses that will create
amenity for users of the living campus. These could include outdoor fitness
trails, outdoor gym equipment, event space and places where people can
meet and connect. Examples of the types of amenity uses that could be
delivered as part of the living campus are illustrated on the following pages.




Ecology and Biodiversity Assets

Following the completion of the detailed ecological surveys described in
Section 6, the illustrative masterplan has been developed to incorporate
a number of possible strategies associated with protecting, managing
and enhancing the key ecological features on the site. These include the
following:

An ecological mitigation area, which was agreed as part of the outline
planning consent for the new B1 office building, running along the
eastern boundary of the site at the edge of the railway embankment;
connecting the habitat of the ponds to the brook along the northern
boundary.

The provision of two new ponds to the north of the site, if an existing
pond is lost as a conseguence of the construction of the new access road
that runs north / south through the site.

The provision of a landscape buffer between the consented B1 office
building and residential development to the north of the site.

A landscape buffer to the north of Fulshaw Hall and the Coach House.
The introduction of a landscape buffer to the existing residential
properties to the west of Alderley Road and also to the north of the site
to the east of Alderley Road.

The retention of the ponds and watercourses that run through the heart
of the site to the Whitehall Brook.

The plan to the right and the images presented on the following two pages
illustrate how different parts of the Royal London site could integrate a
variety of external amenity uses that would support the living campus
concept. Improved external amenity that is interwoven into future uses
across the site will:

Encourage people to relax, meet and connect at the heart of the living
campus by introducing a series of public meeting places, events space
and formal and informal recreation;

Provide amenities across the site which encourage activity and wellbeing,
utilising the landscape strengths of the site, such as outdoor fitness trails,
outdoor gym equipment and play space;

Support the retention of important landscape assets and protect and
enhance important ecological and biodiversity corridors; and

Enhance the green infrastructure across the site to improve accessibility
and connect future open space and amenity uses.

Illustrative Masterplan - External Amenity

PAGE 35

¢ abed



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
7. THE ILLUSTRATIVE MASTERPLAN

-

_":"a_.-i'-. =, A e M

Amenity within the mixed use heart zone is envisaged
as one that not only provides functional aspects which
support office workers and local residents but one

that enables '‘pop-up’ events and a destination to
connect set against the backdrop of the existing mature
landscape setting.

PAGE 36

CASCADE / AMPHITHEATRE

MEET & CONNECT
B T

POP UP EVENT SPACE

PRIVATE GARDENS / ALLOTMENTS
s ¥
LH] 'II. = -_p.

Complementary amenity space linked by the existing
pedestrian crossing point enable a subtle connection
between land to the east and land to west of Alderley

Road.

The potential for a welcome lawn upon entry, to land
east, helps contrast against the denser managed
woodland to the south

FORMAL / INFORMAL RECREATION SPACE




ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
7. THE ILLUSTRATIVE MASTERPLAN

PLAY SPACE

ECOLOGICAL CORRIDOR

'"VILLAGE GREEN'

Opportunities exist to allow green connecting routes for
pedestrians and cyclists from both within the site area
and into the context beyond. These routes are, where
possible, to be sensitively integrated within the existing
landscape potentially interspersed by more open
spaces creating interest and diversity along the route.

Strengthening existing green infrastructure and
enhancing site ecology is a important holistic design
principal with wider connecting routes offering the
chance to create new ecological corridors.

Site uses, such as residential, offer the opportunity
for village / community greens to be developed sited
around existing landscape features.

Seperately, amenity for B1 office provision, such as
informal seating / social areas, can act as a transitional
element between buildings and the natural landscape.

lllustrative Masterplan - Precedent Images

PAGE 37

Gy ebed



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
7. THE ILLUSTRATIVE MASTERPLAN

Highways, Access and Car Parking

The illustrative masterplan provides a highways solution that ensures safe
and suitable access can be provided to the site. The masterplan proposes
the following primary vehicular access points to the site:

e The current primary access at the all movements signal controlled
junction to the south of Royal London House.

* A new all movements access is to be provided via land to the north of
Fulshaw Hall and the creation of a new secondary access serving Fulshaw
Hall and the Coach House.

* Animproved secondary access to the south of the current primary
access to the site on Alderley Road; and

e Access to land to the west of Alderley Road via a new priority junction
from Alderley Road to serve proposed residential uses.

The new access to the north of Fulshaw Hall will provide significantly
increased permeability throughout the site and will significantly improve the
capacity of vehicular access into land to the east of Alderley Road. There

is the potential to utilise this new access for construction traffic and access
to new office uses as the proposed development of the outline planning
consent comes forward. This access would also serve future residential
phases of the development on the land to the north east the existing
campus; and provide the opportunity to provide bus access into the site.

Connectivity and Sustainability

The illustrative masterplan is underpinned by a comprehensive movement
strategy that ensures that the site is accessible by a variety of sustainable
modes of transport including public bus, walking and cycling. The
masterplan proposes a development that is accessible and will encourage
access via sustainable modes of transport. It considers a number of
initiatives to improve the connectivity and accessibility of the site including:

* The provision of a new bus route through the site to provide direct access
between the site and Wilmslow Town Centre and the railway station.

* Improved pedestrian and cycle links between the living campus,
and Wilmslow Town Centre, the Wilmslow Railway Station and the
employment land allocation to the immediate east of the West Coast
Mainline, as well as and the wider area.

* Enhanced internal connectivity through the ‘living heart’ of the campus
to ensure that land uses are connected and integrated into existing green
links.

PAGE 38

Illustrative Masterplan - Vehicle Routes

of abed

PRIMARY ROUTE
SECONDARY ROUTE
BUS ONLY ROUTE

BUS STOP



R T W
< AR R .
e ¥

l\i’ PRIMARY CYCLE/PED ROUTE
j 'gq.’, SECONDARY CYCLE/PED ROUTE

‘g\’ POTENTIAL CYCLE/PED LINK

lllustrative Masterplan - Pedestrian / Cycle Routes

ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
7. THE ILLUSTRATIVE MASTERPLAN

Preserving Heritage Assets

The illustrative masterplan has evolved to position Fulshaw Hall and

the Coach House as the centre piece of at heart of thea key part of the
heritage mixed use area of the living campus, being the most significant
heritage buildings within the immediate context of the masterplan. The
existing landscape setting of Fulshaw Hall and the Coach House has been
considered in detail and is of an enclosed character, being well shielded
from views into the site by the existing mature landscaping to all sides. The
masterplan preserves this setting and also seeks to enhance it through the
new public realm that will be introduced at the heart of the living campus
once Royal London House is redeveloped. This open space will be central
to the masterplan, taking character and identity from the listed building.

L obed

Design and Character

The entire illustrative masterplan is founded on creating high quality
design proposals which deliver development that retains and enhances the
landscape setting and character of the site, which is of vital importance

to the successful creation of a genuinely unique sense of place for the
living campus. The relationship between residential and employment

uses is of paramount importance across the site, with the masterplan
proposing significant landscape buffers between neighbouring residential
development and the site, and also between these two uses within the site
boundary.

The site is located on the main approach into Wilmslow from the south and,
as such, is clearly a significant gateway to the town. The masterplan has
ensured that the landscape frontage along Alderley Road is enhanced on
the land to the west of Alderley Road and that any new development of the
existing campus is located away from Alderley Road, maintaining the open
high quality landscape feel of the approach to the site.

Visual Amenity

As part of the consented outline planning application, the visual impact

of the B1 office development was considered in detail from all the key
views, viewpoints and visual receptors around the site including the longer
distance views from Alderley Edge, and the impact was found to be
acceptable.

The illustrative masterplan for the remainder of the site seeks to introduce
development into landscape character areas that are generally considered
to be enclosed in their character and of a scale that would not exceed the
height of the mature trees, which will result in a sensitive development of
the site.

Sports Facilities and Recreation

The masterplan provides 1 hectare of land to be set aside for playing fields
and other recreational uses for use by Wilmslow High School and future
occupiers of the site. There is an opportunity as part of the masterplan and
reserved matters application to consider the joint use between Wilmslow
High School and the future occupier of the Royal London site.

PAGE 39



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
8. DELIVERY AND PHASING

The illustrative masterplan shows one possible form of development for the site that is deliverable, viable and achievable. It has been provided

to demonstrate that an appropriate mix of uses can be achieved and to promote the concept of a living campus that would create an exceptional
quality of place and an exciting, vibrant new area for Wilmslow. For this to be delivered it must be commercially attractive and subsequent planning
applications need to be underpinned by careful consideration of the site’s opportunities and constraints. The masterplan development will be
phased with initial priority given to the implementation of the existing outline planning consent for office development, which will deliver the quality
and scale of accommodation required by major commercial occupiers and has the potential to provide a fully deliverable option for the relocation
of RLG’s staff within Wilmslow

A DELIVERABLE CAMPUS

It is important that the masterplan vision provides a deliverable option that
can realise the objectives of CELPS Policy CS26. Development constraints
have been considered in the preparation of the Development Framework
and illustrative masterplan and commercial factors (in terms of viability and
likely market demand) have also been considered. A major scheme such
as is shown on the illustrative masterplan will inevitably be delivered over a
number of years in line with market forces.

The successful and sustainable delivery of proposals will be complex and
need to consider:

* The need to safeguard mature landscape and heritage assets;
e The scale of proposed B1 office development; and

* The scale, type and mix of complementary mixed uses that is required.

As a consequence of this complexity, it may be necessary in the early
delivery phases to accommodate short term, temporary uses on land which
is identified for other, longer term uses. Phasing proposals will need to

take this into account when considering practical development issues such
as appropriate access and routing for construction traffic (initially for the
2016 consented office development) as well as potentially the provision of
temporary car parking, to ensure adequate on site spaces are retained for
occupiers if existing areas of car parking are lost due to new development
taking place.

The overall development will most likely be brought forward in a series of

phases (and applications), both residential and commercial. Whilst land to
the west of Alderley Road is capable of being realised as a separate phase
given that it is a distinct land parcel, it may be appropriate to consider the
provision of affordable housing across the site as a whole.

PAGE 40

Q¥ abed



This Development Framework forms a platform to deliver the vision for a ‘living campus’. This vision envisages a vibrant, high quality, thriving
business location supported by an integrated mix of uses mixed use development in an exceptional landscape setting, where people can live, work
and relax. It will integrate the requirements of modern office occupiers with a distinctive place offering quality housing, leisure and recreation
opportunities and commercial facilities all in a well-managed environment with plentiful green spaces, where people can live and spend their leisure
time. This will be achieved by providing excellent access to a range of amenities both within the site and in nearby Wilmslow town centre, to which

the site will be better connected with enhanced transport linkages

To support the vision, the Royal London site will need to provide the type,
scale and range of uses that will support the development of a dynamic
living campus. In summary, this Development Framework and illustrative
masterplan will enable the delivery of:

1. New high gquality office space that will support the growth of the
knowledge economy, provide accommodation of a type and quality that
will attract and retain major investment to Wilmslow, and support the
vision to create a dynamic and modern business location.

2. High quality housing and other forms of residential development that
will underpin the live/work aspirations of a living campus and provide
the type and quality of homes to meet the needs of Wilmslow and the
Borough.

3. A wide range of amenities including a hotel and restaurant to support
future occupiers of the living campus and provide attractive facilities for
the local community.

4. Plentiful green infrastructure and biodiversity links within an established
high quality, landscape setting.

5. Long term effective use of Listed Buildings including Fulshaw Hall and
the Coach House.

6. Access to high quality open spaces and new recreation provision.

7. A high level of connectivity and accessibility, including improved bus
services and enhanced pedestrian/cycle links to Wilmslow Town Centre,
Wilmslow Station and the wider area.

PROCESS

The Development Framework

Through joint working RLAM and CEC have prepared this draft
Development Framework for public consultation. If approved, it will
undergo a period of public consultation for six weeks.

The purpose of this consultation is to seek the views of the local community
and other key stakeholders on the guidance and proposals contained in the
Development Framework. Once all coommments have been received, these
will be fully considered by the Council and any necessary revisions made

to the Development Framework. A final document will then be put before
the Council’s Cabinet for approval and endorsement. If endorsed, the
document would be used as a material consideration in the determination
of any future planning applications made at the Royal London site.

Timeline

1 The Development Framework and Masterplan is put out to Public
Consultation for 6 weeks.

N

2 All comments received are considered by the Council.

N

3 The Development Framework and Masterplan is reviewed and revised
where necessary based on the comments received.

N

4 A Final Development Framework and Masterplan put before the
Council’s Cabinet for final approval.

NS

5 If the Development Framework and Masterplan is endorsed, it will
become a material consideration in determining future planning
applications.

ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
9. SUMMARY AND NEXT STEPS

Planning Applications and Future Consultation

The future development of the site will be subject to planning applications
as and when elements of the site come forward. The Council operates

a pre-application advisory service which all applicants are encouraged

to utilise, particularly for major developments. This will confirm the
information requirements in terms of supporting information, studies and
technical assessments, as well as the scope of any Environmental Impact
Assessment (EIA). The Council will expect applicants to demonstrate
effective engagement with the local community including the Town
Councils and other key stakeholders both statutory and non-statutory
bodies as appropriate. Details of steps taken to consult and the influence
on the submitted scheme would form part of any planning application and
included as a Statement of Community Involvement. A list of potential
planning application requirements is provided at Appendix B. The

precise list should be agreed with the Council in relation to a particular
development proposal.

PAGE 41

61 abed



& Ty
‘ g v
41.‘ o : : = i
- b | i
= -.J 4 .

yo
b’
%
e
;|
f !
I 2
T




APPENDIX A

CELPS PROPOSED CHANGES VERSION: JULY 2016

LG ebed



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK

O Site C5 26 Royal London_including land 1o the west of Alderley RHoad, Wilmelow

18.260 The Roval London sils presenls an opporlunily Lo daliver & high qualily, suslainable, mixsd
usa devalopmenl Lo conlribuls Lo the idenlified housing needs of Lhe lown o Wilmslow, a5 well a5
conlribuling Lo lhe proyvision of lhe 3orough's knowledge-based induslry and open space provision,

18.261  This sile is localed Lo he soulh wesl of Wilmsow Town Cenlre and is £plil inlo lwo parls
across Alderley Road. The easl seclion of lhe sils is bordsred by lhe Wesl Coasl Main Line and &34
Wilmslow 3vpass o lhe easl and soulh of lhe sile, wilh residenlial developmenl and playing felds
Lo lhe norlh. The seclion wesl of Alderlsy Road i currenlly agricullural land bounded by housing Lo
lhe norlh, wesl, and soulh; and by lhe exizling Royal London Campus (across Alderley Road) Lo the
8a:sl.

18,262 The sile includes lhe exisling FHoyal London campus which is o be relained. Wilh Lhe
axcsplion of one ar lwo hadgerows, lhe non-devaloped area oflbe sile is open in nalura, wilh numerous
lress dolled along Lhe sile boundary, and & small ares of woodad cover Lo Lhe soulh wesl of Lhe sils.
There are also ponds and & brook wilhin Lhe sils lhal has resulled 0 a small area of lhe south-west
far soulhem end o lhe sile being in ood zons 3.

18,263 Allocalion of his sile srdHre-Pretected-Oper-Spatecwill require an adjuslmenl Lo the Green

Sall boundary,

Hoyal Londen_including land west of Alderley Hoad, Wilmelow

The developmesanl of lhe Royal London sils over lhe Local Plan Slralsgy period will be achiswed
lhrough:

1. Tha ralenlion armpretecton of lhe sxisling Royal London Campus unless buildings becomes
surplus Lo lhe requiremenls of exisling occupiers, in which case lhe Council will consider
lheir suilabilily for reuse or redevalopmenl ‘or & range o allernalive uses:

2. Thadalivery o around 175 dwallings {around 80 on land Lo Ihe easl o lhe exisling campus,
around 20 1o lhe norh of lhe exisling campus and around 75 on land wesl of Alderley
Roadi;

3. The provision of 5 ha of employmenl land for up Lo sround 58088 24 000 squars melrss
o' 31 employmenl space and & holsl;

4. Incorporalion of Green InTraslruclure and the provision of public open space tethe-al lhe
soulbern end of lbe land wesl of Alderley Road;

5. Helenlion and exlenzion of lha exisling Wimslow High School playing fields ‘or educalional
use in lhe area marked a5 prolecled open space on lhe map. This may include addilional
buildings ‘or educalion use provided Lhey do ol harm Ihe inlegrily of lhe open space overall:

B,  Provision of al leasl 1 ha o' land £el aside ‘or use a: school playing fields wilhin lbe land
lo lhe eazl o lhe axizling campus, in addilion Lo lhe areas marked a: prolecled open space
on lhe map, and an &r-approprials levsl of amenily opsn space and children's play space;
and

7. Pedeslrian and cycle links and associaled inraslruclurs,

Site Specific Principles of Development

SHESHIRS DAST Elralegy - Froposed Changes {Final Yersion): July 2016

Phased dalivery on land Lo lbe aasl of lhe exisling campus 0 Lhal 3 serviced sile for 31 O

smploymeanl uses is deliversd in conjunclion wilh lhe residenlial devalopmenl.

High qualily design and approprials landscaping f Green In‘raslruclure should be provided
wilhin lhe zile in order lo preserys lhe characler of lhe area and snsure an acceplable
ralalionship balwean rezidenlial and employmeanl uses. The design musl respecl lhe sila's
localion 5 & key enlrance inlo Wilms o,

Provision of aress of open space wilhin lhe schems, including:

a new public realm belwsen exizling and proposed eamploymeanl uses, which will 3ssisl
wilh lhe inlegralion and provide an allraclive selling ‘or new desslopmenl;-ard

i.  Land for addilional playing ‘fislds accessible rom Wilmslow High School_and

i, A new public open space al lhe soulharn end o land we:l of Aldarlsy Road.

Realanlion and enhancemanl of ‘ealures wilhin Lhe sila lhal are of amenily valuse, whare
‘sazible, specifically lhe malure wooded area Lo lhe wesl of lhe sils, (he brook-ard, Lhe
ponds lhal are presenl,_and lhe lres and hedge lined ronlages Lo Alderlsy Road.
Improved conneclivily and access inlo lhe sile 1o lhe wider local area (ncluding Wilms|ow
Railwayy Slalion], lhrough Llhe provision of approprials linkages.

Frovizion of conlribulions lo educalion and heallh in‘razslruclurs,

Provision o 2¥ordable housing in lins wilh lhe palicy requiremenls el oul in Policy SC5
f&Mordable Homes ).

Respacl ‘or lhe salling of lisled buildings on sils including =ulshaw Hall.

B delailed sile-specific ‘lood risk assezsmenl should be prepared.

A minimum of 3 Phase 1 Praliminary Risk &zsessmenl for conlaminaled land should be
carried oul lo demonslrale Ihal lhe zile is, or could be mads, suilable for use should il be
found Lo be conlaminsbed. Surlber seork, including 5 sile invesligalion, may be required al
a pra-planning £lage, depending on lhe nalure of lha sila.

Felenlion of Ihe exisling Royal London Campus landscaps salling.

SHESHIRES TAST Sirategy - Fropesed Changes (Final Yersion]: July 2016

443

26 ebed



=

TORF LT ne

Figune 1547 ([NEW YERSMIN) Royal London, incluading lansd woesl of Alklorley Road silo

dadd SHESHIRES DAST Siralegy - Proposed Changes (Minal Yersien]: July 2016

ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK

Justification

18.264  This sile presenls an ideal opporlunily “or an infill developmenl which, wilh & mized use
schamea, will “acililals lhe growlh and expansion of & major employmenl sile, provide jobs and mesl
Wilmslow's much nesded requiremenls for open space provision, whilsl relaining lhe characler of
lhe arsa.

18.365  TheRoyal London sile currenlly performs an essenlial rols in providing treckess-amploymeanl
in a key growlh san:ln:-r and Lhis s.|la is wilal |n |:|rn:|.-|d|ru:| ulure an'u:uln:n ymenl |:||:||:u:-rlun|l|as in W mes o,

Jor & major neew oice building on the land Lo lhe ea:l of he currenl campus. This could resull in
axislinq buildinqs wilhin lhe axis.lin-:l campus. becoming available ‘u:-r renn::n::upali-:nn n:nr reda.-‘al-:-l:-rnanl

ﬁﬁhh&hﬁd—ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁ-rdﬁﬁhﬁﬂ!ﬁ&a}ﬁﬁmaﬁl— Da.aln:npmanl o’ lhe Ian-:l aasl o' lhe exizling campus

should be phased so lhal employmenl uses can be broughl ‘orasrd alongside lhe residenlial
devalopmenl. Housing will lhera‘ore acl as an ‘enabler’ Lo ensure lhal employmenl developmenl
lakes place,

18366 A cohesive approach muslbe Laken when considering Lhe [ayoul of Lhe sile, good conneclivily
belyean exizling and new devalopmenls and open space provision will be essenlial in ensuring a
wall dezigned and suslainable sile. & new public realm belwsen exizling and proposed employmeanl

uses will be sFeodraged requirad.

18,367 High qualily design will also be very imporlanl. Mew developmenl will be expaclad Lo
pressrys or enhancs lhe selling of designaled herilage assels ocaled wilthin lhe sils, as well 335 lhe
characler of lhe sumounding area_ncluding lbe visual characler o lhe enlrance inlo Wilms|ow Tom
lhe soulh along Alderlsy Hn:-ad F'ru:np-:-sals on lhe land wesl of Aldarlsy Hu:-a-:l should als-:n have ra-:lar-:l

Areas: “ulzshaw Park,

18,368 Mew residenlial developmenl should be silualed Lo lhe norlh of he zils Lo prolecl Lhe
amenilies o residenlial properlies wilh lhe exizling and proposed employmenl uses.

18,368 3y virlue of ils localion and lea®y characler il is considersd Lhal Lhis sile o™ars an ideal
zalling ‘or a holel along Alderley Road ‘ronlage. The holal will mol only generals addilional smploymeanl
opporlunilies bul will o®er & supporling “acilily ‘or businesses,

18370 A ‘ull comprehensive landscaping scheme will be undamenlal in ensuring lhe proposed
developmenl is in kesping wilh lhe characler of lhe area and should secure & sensilive gresn buar
belwean proposed rezidenlial and employmenl zones.

18,371 Thers i significanl lres coverage, parlicularly Lo lhe wesl of Lhis sile lharsfors, axisling
malure lress and hedging will be expecled Lo be mainlained, where possibla, or replaced wilh
miligalion.

18,272 Mew devalopmenl will also be expacled Lo respecl any exisling ecological conslrainls on
zile and, whera necessary, provide approprials miligalion.

18.272  The easlern seclion of lhis sils is already served by lwo exisling access poinls o Aldarley
Foad. Inorder Lo accommod als lhe new devalopmenl axisling access poinls will nesd Lo be enhanced,
where approprials, andior sesk Lo inlroduce & new access poinl_& new access poinl o Aldarlsy
Foad will be required ‘or lbe weslarn seclion. Individual dwsllings should nol bave Lhair own dirscl
accessead Lo Aldarley Foad.

Siralegy - Proposed Changes (FKinal Yersion): July 2016

445

PAGE 45

€G abed



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK

4df

PAGE 46

18.274  Inbsgralion wilhin lhe surrounding communily, Flown Soanlne and Rrailway Selalion will be
irtegrate-imporlanl in ensuring lhe suslainabilily of lhis devalopmenl, lherefore conlribulions Lo
enhancemeanls or lhe provision of new linkags:s will ke sncouraged.

18,376 The Council's Green Space Slralsgy has idenlified Lhal lhers is & specific need ‘or open
space wilhin Soulh YWesl Wilmslow, The inclusion of 5 new area of public open space a: parl of lhe

residenlial developmenl of land wesl of Alderley Boad stecaborsthisste-lor-Oper Spacs pUposss
will provide arrsssertEreaquirement-a scilily or exisling and ‘ulurs residenls which will prolecl an
area o' lhe land ‘rom developmenl and relain & %salurs lhal o™ers & high conlribulion Lo lhe characler
o’ lhiz parlicular area.

15.5TER  Any replacemenl andior new sporls provision should be in accordance wilh an adopled

up lo dale and robusl Playing Pilch Slralegy and Indoor Sporls Slralegy and wilh Policy SC 2 ' Indoor
and Quldoor Sporls =acililis:s

15.3T6b The sile ha: polenlial ‘or conlaminalion lo be prezsenl lheraore al easl a Phase 1
Preliminary Risk Assessmenl ‘or conlaminaled land needs 1o be carried oul 1o ensure lhal any
conlaminalion lhal is presenl is subjecl Lo appropriale remedialion.

Indicative Site Delivery

° ILiz expaclad lhal employmenl land allocalions in mized use schemes will ba phased in lLandem
wilh lhe housing allocalions, Whers approprials, lhe phased relesss ofemploymenl [and will be
sacured Llhrough 5106 agresmenlsiobligalions.

Hational Molic 20T [princinally paragranhis): 20, 21, 30, 32, 37, 47, 49, 50, 56, 60, 64, 73, 75, 55,
95, 99, 100, 103, 109, 117 & 120

Local Swidence Site Selection Renort, Strateqgic Jousing Land foailability fesessment, Green Selt
Nzzesiment_Jdndate Cheshire Tast Jousing Jewelonment Study, Steateghe—todsing
Marketfesessmtert; Tmnlowment Land Sewiew, Slignment of Sconomic, Zranlowraent
and dousing Strateqies, Snatial Jistribution Jodate Renort, Wilmslow Town Strategs,
Jewelonrment Strateqw, Cheshine Zast Greensnace Strateqy, Cheshine Tast Strateqic
Moo Risk fssesament, “re-Submission Core Strateqy, Local 2lan Strateqy Submission
Mersion, Sustainabilite fonraisal, Jabitats Requlations fesessrment.

Strateqic “riorities “rigrits 1: “romoting economic prosmerity b creating conditions for business growth
Sricrits 2: To create sustainable comrmunities
“riorits 31 Zawironmmental quality should ke protected and enbianced
“ricrits 4 To reduce the need to travel

S Triorities riorits 1. Murbure strong cormrunities
“rigrity 2. Greate conditions for business growth
ot 5 Znsure a sustainable ture
Srigrite 7. e out the causes ol noor biealth

Tabhe 1536 Folicy Contoxl: Royal London_ine lading land sost of Ao rbey RBoas) Sito

CHESHIRS TAST Strategy - Proposed Changes (Final Yersion]: July 2016

G abed



ROYAL LONDON CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK

PPENDIX

GG ebed

PLANNING DOCUMENTATION

THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE LIKELY TO BE REQUIRED
TO ACCOMPANY FUTURE PLANNING APPLICATIONS.

« PART 1 APPLICATION FORMS

- CERTIFICATE OF OWNERSHIP

* LOCATION PLAN, SCALE 1:2500, SITE EDGED RED, OTHER
LAND IN SAME OWNERSHIP EDGED BLUE

*« EXISTING AND PROPOSED SITE PLANS
The Council’s validation checklist can be found on the Council’s * EXISTING AND PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS
website at the following link:- * STREET SCENE PERSPECTIVES

http:.//www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/environment_and._planning,/ * ENVIRONMENTAL STATEMENT"
planning,/planning_application_advice/making_a_planning._ * TREE SURVEY AND TREE REPORT
application/what_do_| need to_submit.aspx « LANDSCAPE AND VISUAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT

* LANDSCAPE MASTERPLAN

* LANDSCAPE DESIGN REPORT (TO INCLUDE A LANDSCAPE
STRATEGY AND LANDSCAPE DESIGN PRINCIPLES FOR EACH
DEVELOPMENT AREA AND OTHER SITE COMPARTMENTS -
PARKLAND, WOODLANDS, ETC)

*« ECOLOGICAL REPORT(S)

* PLANNING STATEMENT

* DESIGN AND ACCESS STATEMENT

* HERITAGE STATEMENT

* SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

* FRAMEWORK TRAVEL PLAN

* TRANSPORT ASSESSMENT

* DRAINAGE AND FLOOD RISK REPORTS
* CONTAMINATED LAND REPORTS

* EMPLOYMENT LAND REPORT

* SPORTS NEEDS ASSESSMENT

e STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
* VIABILITY APPRAISAL

* DRAFT LEGAL AGREEMENT

PAGE 47



Page 56



	Agenda
	4 Royal London Development Framework
	Framework Document_Draft May 2017


